
 
 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
Thursday, September 17, 2020 

RDOS Boardroom – 101 Martin Street, Penticton 
 

SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS 
 

 
 
9:00 am - 9:30 am  Planning and Development Committee 

 
9:30 am - 10:15 am  Environment and Infrastructure Committee 

 
10:15 am - 10:30am  Corporate Services Committee 

 
10:30 am -  10:45 am  Break 

 
10:45 am  -  11:30 am  RDOS Board 

 
11:30 am - 12:30 pm  OSRHD Board 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

2020 Notice of Meetings 

October 1  RDOS Board  Committee Meetings 

October 15  RDOS Board OSRHD Board Committee Meetings 

November 5  RDOS Board 
Inaugural 

OSRHD Board 
Inaugural  

November 19  RDOS Board OSRHD Board Committee Meetings 

December 3  RDOS Board  Committee Meetings 

December 17  RDOS Board OSRHD Board Committee Meetings 

 

“Karla Kozakevich” 

Karla Kozakevich 
RDOS Board Chair 



 
 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
Planning and Development Committee 

Thursday, September 17, 2020 
9:00 am 

 
AGENDA 

 
 
A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RECOMMENDATION 1  
THAT the Agenda for the Planning and Development Committee Meeting of September 17, 2020 be 
adopted. 

 
 

B. DELEGATION 
1. Michael Rupen, Director, Dominion Radio Astrophysical Observatory 

Mr. Rupen will address the Board to provide an overview of their operations. 
 

 
C. Status of Land use Contract No. LU-6-D (St. Andrews) – Electoral Area “I” 

1. National Research Council Canada Response 
 

RECOMMENDATION 2  
THAT the Board of Directors advise the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing that it supports the 
extension of Land Use Contract No. LU-6-D to June 30, 2029, in order that replacement federal and/or 
provincial legislation can be enacted. 

 
 

D. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 



TO:  
 
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
DATE: September 17, 2020 
 
RE: Status of Land Use Contract No. LU-6-D (St. Andrews) – Electoral Area “I” 
 

Administrative Recommendation:  

THAT the Board of Directors advise the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing that it 
supports the extension of Land Use Contract No. LU-6-D to June 30, 2029, in order that 
replacement federal and/or provincial legislation can be enacted. 
 

Purpose: 
The purpose of this report is to seek direction from the Board in relation to a proposal from the 
Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing to extend Land Use Contract No. LU-6-D (St. Andrews) 
beyond the legislated termination date of June 30, 2024. 
 
Background: 
Dominion Radio Astrophysical Observatory (DRAO): 

The Dominion Radio Astrophysical Observatory was inaugurated in 1960 at White Lake and is 
now an internationally known facility for radio astronomy operated by the National Research 
Council of Canada as part of the Herzberg Astronomy and Astrophysics Research Centre.  

DRAO comprises three radio telescope facilities – a 7-element interferometric radio telescope, 
a 26-m single-dish antenna, and a solar flux monitor— as well as engineering laboratories that 
support the telescopes and participate in international research and development programmes.  
DRAO also provides infrastructure and technical support for telescopes operated by university 
partners, such as the Canadian Hydrogen Intensity Mapping Experiment (CHIME). 

An important aspect to the continuing operation of the Observatory is its location in a radio-
quiet zone that protects its equipment from radio interference such as cell towers.  This quiet 
zone is achieved in part through the hills surrounding the observatory as well as local 
government regulation.  

“St. Andrews Recreation Development”: 

At its meeting of February 22, 1973, the Regional District Board adopted Amendment Bylaw No. 
169, which authorised Land Use Contract No. LU-6-D, the purpose of which was to facilitate the 
“St. Andrews Recreation Development”, being approximately 150 parcels and a golf course. 

Due to the proximity of this development to the Observatory, LU-6-D contains a number of 
regulations intended to “restrict the installation and use of those types of electrical equipment 



and devices on the lands that could cause radio interference with observation at the site of the 
… ‘Observatory’.” 

This includes, amongst other things, restrictions on electric motors to be used in furnaces or air 
conditioners, household appliances, radio transmitters (e.g. ‘walkie-talkies’), fluorescent lights, 
microwave ovens, chainsaws and ATVs. 

The Contract also purports to grant DRAO staff “the right of access to the lands [affected by the 
LUC] for the purpose of locating interfering devices” and, when such devices are identified, 
providing the property owner or Regional District with written notice and four (4) days to either 
“remove or supress the device”. 

Current Status of LU-6-D: 

At present, the “St. Andrews Recreation Development” remains on-going with a 25-lot 
subdivision application currently being assessed by the Ministry of Transportation and 
Infrastructure (MoTI), and plans for additional un-finished phases being prepared. 

The Regional District has previously advised the Ministry and the applicant that elements of this 
subdivision are not seen to be consistent with LU-6-D and that an “Early Termination”, 
“Voluntary Discharge” or amendment of the contract is likely required in order to proceed with 
the subdivision as currently proposed. 

Provincial Termination of all Land Use Contracts: 

In 2014, the provincial government amended the Local Government Act in order that all 
remaining land use contracts will automatically be terminated, and shall be deemed to be 
discharged from the title of the applicable parcel by June 30, 2024. 

Under Section 547 of the Act, “a local government that has jurisdiction over land subject to a 
land use contract must [emphasis added], by June 30, 2022, adopt a zoning bylaw that will 
apply to the land on June 30, 2024.” 

Since 2014, the Regional District has completed the early termination or voluntary discharge of 
eight (8) Contracts and, at present, there are three (3) remaining LUCs within the Regional 
District, of which LU-6-D is one. 

Previous RDOS Board Consideration: 

At its meeting of April 1, 2010, the Board adopted the South Okanagan Regional Growth 
Strategy (RGS) Bylaw, which designated Primary and Rural Growth areas.  The St. Andrews area 
was not designated as either a Primary or Rural Growth area. 

At its meeting of December 15, 2016, the Board adopted the Electoral Area “I” Official 
Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 2683, 2016, which, amongst other things, speaks to: 

• generally not supporting future rezoning or subdivision applications that will create 
additional development or intensify development within the RFI Area; and  

• supporting the transfer of density “outside the RFI area” and to the east of the St Andrews 
community. 



In 2017, as part of on-going work related to the preparation of a single zoning bylaw for the 
Okanagan Electoral Areas, the Regional District Board’s objectives, policies and zoning 
regulations that support the operation of the Observatory were made consistent across 
Electoral Areas. 

This included, amongst other things, introducing updated Radio Frequency Interference (RFI) 
mapping and revised regulations pertaining to minimum parcel size for subdivisions, density of 
accessory dwelling units and permitted home occupation/industry uses within the RFI Area. 
 
Analysis: 

While Administration is supportive of DRAO and has recommended in favour of various land 
use amendment bylaws that support the on-going operation of the Observatory, the proposed 
extension of Land Use Contract No. LU-6-D raises a number of concerns: 

• the LUC only applies to a very small part of the Radio Frequency Interference (RFI) Area — 
approximately 2.6% — and is not seen to be an effective, long-term tool for ensuring the 
whole of the RFI Area is protected from uses that might cause interference with the 
Observatory’s operations. 

• the LUC contains language that is: 

• of questionable enforceability (i.e. unlawful delegation of Board authority); 

• difficult to implement and enforce (i.e. prohibitions on use of certain household 
appliances, the golf course being for private use only, etc.); and 

• comprises vaguely drafted development regulations (i.e. minimum setbacks, parcel 
coverage and building heights for dwellings are not specified). 

• contrary to the LUC, the Electoral Area “I” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016, speaks to 
encouraging the unfinished subdivision phases of the “St. Andrew Recreation 
Development” being re-located to the eastern part of the property, outside of the RFI 
Area. 

• extending the LUC may frustrate the completion of the un-finished subdivision phases or 
incentivize their completion within the RFI Area (being the western part of the property), 
if an amendment to the Contract is not undertaken. 

Conversely, Administration recognises that, despite its flaws, the LUC is unique in its intent and 
regulations and that local government land use bylaws (OCP and Zoning) cannot offer the same 
level of protection from radio frequency interference that DRAO believes is currently afforded 
by LU-6-D. 

Options: 

• A SHORT-TERM EXTENSION IS REQUESTED 

Under this scenario, the Regional District would request of the Ministry that the Contract be 
extended for a set period of time in order to allow for replacement legislation addressing 
RFI protections to be enacted.   



This would defer the need for the Regional District to initiate an “Early Termination” of LU-
6-D until such time as replacement legislation has been resolved, and could allow for a more 
consistent approach to be applied to the RFI Area (as opposed to only the area affected by 
LU-6-D). 

It is anticipated that any new provincial legislation is going to require implementation by the 
Regional District to fully enact and, while it is unknown at this time what form this 
legislation might take, Administration anticipates seeking further direction from the Board 
in relation to a preferred option (i.e. new development permit, nuisance bylaw or some 
other power). 

Extension of the Contract could present challenges to the completion of the remaining 
subdivision phases of the “St Andrews Recreation Development”, if the Contract is not 
amended. 

This is due to the proponent seeking to introduce density to the eastern part of the 
property, which is supported by the OCP, but that is inconsistent with the requirements of 
the Contract, which speaks to some of this density being developed on the western part of 
the property. 

In the absence of an amendment to the Contract, an extension of LU-6-D would likely 
require the proponent to reconsider their current subdivision plans.  This may result in the 
unfinished phases of the “St Andrews Recreation Development” being re-directed to the 
western part of the property, which would be undesirable from a land use perspective. 

 
• STATUS QUO (the LUC is not extended) 

Under this scenario, the Regional District would advise the Ministry that it does not wish for 
the Contract to be extended and would proceed with an “Early Termination” of LU-6-D prior 
to June 30, 2022, in order to introduce replacement zoning. 

While replacement zoning for LU-6-D has yet to be drafted, based upon previous LUC 
terminations undertaken by the Regional District it is anticipated that any new zoning would 
attempt to maintain existing uses and densities permitted under the Contract.   

The replacement zoning would not, however, attempt to re-create those regulations related 
to radio frequency interference contained in the Contract that are seen to be outside the 
Regional District’s zoning power. 

The “Early Termination” process would further allow the Board to introduce zoning that 
facilitates the remaining phases of the “St Andrews Recreation Development” on the 
eastern part of the property and generally outside of the RFI Area.  This would fulfill the 
OCP policy direction of encouraging new subdivisions to occur in this same area. 

If the Contract was not extended, Administration is anticipating that the federal and 
provincial governments would, nevertheless, continue to explore alternate legislative 
remedies to address the termination of LU-6-D, and that these discussions will likely involve 
the Regional District. 



Failure to extend the Contract may also result in a period of time — pending the 
introduction of new federal and/or provincial legislation — in which the St Andrews 
community is not subject to the type of RFI regulations currently contained within LU-6-D. 

 
• A PERMANENT EXTENSION IS REQUESTED 

Under this scenario, the Regional District would request of the Ministry that the Contract be 
extended indefinitely, which would then negate the need to ever initiate an “Early 
Termination” of LU-6-D. 

Administration considers this to be the least desirable option due to the previously 
highlighted challenges with the Contract as it is presently written, and that such an 
extension would not address the remaining 97.4% of the RFI Area that occurs outside of LU-
6-D.  

This option could also present the same challenges outlined under Option 1 (above) to 
completing the remaining subdivision phases of the “St Andrews Recreation Development”, 
if the Contract were not to be amended. 

 
Summary: 
Administration recognises that resolving the replacement of LUC No. LU-6-D is going to be a 
collaborative effort involving all three levels of government, that an extension is favoured by 
DRAO and will be required in order to ensure that replacement provisions can be completed 
without an imminent deadline limiting options and in further recognition of the timing 
challenges associated with senior level of government legislative processes. 

Accordingly, Administration is recommending in favour of an extension of LU-6-D for a period 
not exceeding 5 years from the date that all LUCs are legislatively set to be terminated (i.e. June 
30, 2029) be supported.  
 
Alternatives:  

• THAT Board of Directors advise the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing that it does 
not support the extension of Land Use Contract No. LU-6-D; OR 

• THAT Board of Directors advise the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing that it 
supports the permanent extension of Land Use Contract No. LU-6-D. 

 

Respectfully submitted:  

______________________________  
C. Garrish, Planning Manager 
 
 
Attachments:  No. 1 – Context Maps 
 No. 2 – Schedule “B” of LU-6-D 



 No. 3 – Proposed 25-lot Subdivision 
 No. 4 – LU-6-D vs. RFI Area 
 No. 5 – National Research Council of Canada Response 
 
 

   

 
Attachment No. 1 – Context Map 

 

 
 

 

   
 
  
 



 
  

   
     

 

  
 

 

Attachment No. 2 – Schedule “B” of LU-6-D 



    

  
 



Attachment No. 3 – 
Proposed 25-lot Subdivision 

 
 

  
 

 



Attachment No. 4 – LU-6-D vs. RFI Area 



P.O. Box 248 C.P. 248
Penticton, BC  V2A 6J9 Penticton (C.-B.)  V2A 6J9
Telephone:  250-497-2300 Téléphone : 250-497-2300
Docufax:  250-497-2355 Docufax : 250-497-2355

National Research Council Conseil national de recherches 
Canada Canada 

Herzberg Astronomy and Centre de recherche Herzberg en 
Astrophysics Research Centre astronomie et en astrophysique 

Dominion Radio Observatoire fédéral 
Astrophysical Observatory de radioastrophysique 

 National Research Council Canada’s (NRC) Dominion Radio Astrophysical Observatory (DRAO), located in
the White Lake Basin area, near Penticton BC, provides critical infrastructure in support of Canadian radio
astronomy projects.

 DRAO is Canada’s only nationally-owned radio astronomy observatory, operated by NRC through its BC-
based Herzberg Astronomy and Astrophysics Research Centre as part of NRC’s mandate to manage and
operate facilities for scientific research.  It is used by researchers from across Canada with an international
user community who participate in collaborative national and international research projects.

 DRAO provides critical infrastructure in support of radio astronomy projects such as the $16M CHIME
telescope developed and built by a Canadian University-led collaboration. As well, the site is home to three
National telescope facilities and world-leading engineering research and development laboratories
supported by 40 NRC staff, and there are about 60 visiting national and international researchers that come
to DRAO every year.

 DRAO’s principal asset is the site itself. Selected in the late 1950s from a Canada-wide search, the White
Lake basin provides an extremely radio-quiet environment for observing naturally occurring radio
emissions, which require minimal levels of radio frequency interference (RFI). RFI protection is essential for
the continued operation of the DRAO as a radio astronomy site, due to the extremely weak cosmic waves
being studied.

 Since 1973, a Provincial Land Use Contract (LUC) between the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen
(RDOS) and the land developer established unique measures to protect DRAO from RFI arising from the
neighbouring St. Andrews housing development. It was intended to remain in force indefinitely, but
unanticipated changes to Provincial legislation will now terminate all LUCs in 2024.

 NRC – DRAO seeks to ensure that continued and enduring RFI protection measures are in place to permit
sustained use of the astrophysical assets of the DRAO. RFI protection measures through minimized land use
density and restricted installation and use of electrical equipment and devices that minimize RFI levels to
“levels acceptable to DRAO” enable continued effective use of the instruments like CHIME, but will also
help secure future potential investments in the site as radio astronomy continues to grow in importance.

 NRC – DRAO advocate for an approach that provides the strongest possible enduring legal protection that
addresses the needs of all parties. An extension of the current LUC does not appear to address all needs
and simply moves the problem “further down the road”. Focussed efforts at this time on replacing the LUC
with appropriate legal protection covering the entire RDOS-identified RFI protection area is preferable.

 NRC – DRAO remains committed to work with the Province and the RDOS to achieve a mutually beneficial
solution.



 
 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
Environment and Infrastructure Committee 

Thursday, September 17, 2020 
9:30 am 

 
AGENDA 

 
 
A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RECOMMENDATION 1  
THAT the Agenda for the Environment and Infrastructure Committee Meeting of September 17, 2020 
be adopted. 

 
 

B. DELEGATIONS 
Sarah Boyle, Project Manager, Parks Canada  
Keith Baric, Planning Section Head, Okanagan, BC Parks 
Ms. Boyle and Mr. Baric will address the Board to provide an update on the proposed National Park 
Reserve 
i. Parks Canada Update on the proposed national park reserve in the South Okanagan-

Similkameen 
 
 
C. Large Item Collection Rescheduled – For Information Only 
 

 
D. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 













 

Page 1 of 2 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
  
TO: Environment and Infrastructure Committee 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: September 17, 2020 
  
RE: Large Item Collection Rescheduled 

 
  Administrative Recommendation: 
  FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
 
  Purpose: 
  To inform the Board of the rescheduled 2020 Large Item Collection. 

  Background: 
The Large Item Collection was postponed by the RDOS, City of Penticton, Town of Oliver, Town of 
Osoyoos and Village of Keremeos this April. The postponement was due to unknown requirements 
for worker safety and other concerns related to Covid 19. Large item collection requires several 
workers to lift and move heavy items in close quarters for long hours; increasing the risk of infection.  
 
The waste collection contractor, Waste Connections of Canada, and their subcontractor, Family 
Movers of Penticton, have developed protocols they believe meet current WorkSafeBC 
requirements. The Large Item Collections have been scheduled for October. 
 
Analysis: 
Only furniture, mattresses, boxsprings and large appliances will be picked up. A maximum of two 
items per house will be collected, and each item cannot weigh more than 90kg or 200lbs.  
 
Items that will not be collected include electronics, lawn mowers, carpet, blinds, demolition 
materials or plumbing fixtures. Contact your local landfill or the Regional District for more 
information on recycling these items. 
 
Schedule of Large Item Collections: 

• Friday, October 2: Village of Keremeos and Electoral Areas ‘B’ and ‘G’ 
• October 5 – 9: City of Penticton (on day of scheduled garbage collection) 
• Monday, October 12(Thanksgiving Monday): Town of Oliver and Electoral Area ‘C’ 
• Tuesday, October 13: Town of Osoyoos and Electoral Area ‘A’  
• Wednesday, October 14: Electoral Areas ‘D’ and ‘I’, comprising Okanagan Falls and Kaleden 
• Thursday, October 15: Electoral Areas ‘E’ and ‘F’ and Upper Carmi 

 
 
 



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 Next Steps: 
 The RDOS is working with member municipalities to inform residents of the changes dates of   
collection. 

 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Andrew Reeder, Manager of Operations 

 

 

 



 
 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
Corporate Services Committee 

Thursday, September 17, 2020 
10:15 am 

 
AGENDA 

 
 
A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RECOMMENDATION 1  
THAT the Agenda for the Corporate Services Meeting of September 17, 2020 be adopted. 

 
 

B. 2020 Year-End Meeting Schedule – For Information 
 

 
C. UBCM Update – Verbal Update 
 

 
D. Information Services – Verbal Update 
 

 
E. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2020/20200917/Corporate Services/B. 2020 Year-End Meeting 
Schedule.Docx  Page 1 of 2 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
  
TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: September 17, 2020 
  
RE: 2020 Year-End Meeting Schedule – For Information 
 
The final quarter of each year is often one of the busiest for many local governments.  Extra-
ordinary meetings and workshops such as Strategic Planning and Budget get underway to set goals 
for the coming year.  
 
To keep the Board apprised of the meeting schedule for those extra-ordinary meetings, the 
schedule for the rest of 2020 is noted in the table on the following pages.  Member municipalities 
were advised of this draft schedule early in the summer and there appears to be no conflict with 
those municipalities’ scheduled meetings. 
 
Although the Board has been meeting strictly via WebEx since April 2020 as a result of COVID-19 
restrictions; several members of the Board have expressed a desire to meet in person periodically.  
 
In order to accommodate this request while ensuring COVID compliance, administration proposes 
to hold those extra-ordinary workshops offsite, with access via WebEx.  Regular Board meetings 
would continue to be conducted via WebEx only.  Because of the more formal nature of Board 
meetings, and the need for a layout which enables Board members to be face to face and to see 
and hear each other, the logistics of holding these meetings in person are more challenging.  
Conducting workshops in person are easier as the layout can be more informal, enabling the 
required physical distancing. 
 
Administration is pleased to advise that representatives from the Ombudspersons office and the 
Office of the Privacy Commissioners office will be offering a workshop on Thursday November 5 to 
discuss current best practices relating to Privacy & Information Sharing, Administrative Fairness, 
Accessibility, Transparency and Ethics in Local Government.  Council members and senior staff from 
the member municipalities will be invited to take part in the sessions via WebEx, as well. 
 
Outlook invites for these meetings will be forwarded to each Board member in the coming weeks. 
 
 

Meeting Schedule on Page 2 
 
 
 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2020/20200917/Corporate Services/B. 2020 Year-End Meeting 
Schedule.Docx  Page 2 of 2 
 

Date / Location Meeting Time 
Thursday, November 5, 2020 
Lakeside Hotel 

- Ombudsperson/Privacy 
Commissioner Workshop 

- Inaugural Board / Hospital Board 
Meeting  

(no reception to follow) 

9:00 am 
 

3:00 pm 

Friday, November 6, 2020 
Lakeside Hotel 

- Legislative Workshop 
 

9:00 am 
 

   
Thursday, November 12, 2020 
Lakeside Hotel 

- Strategic Planning Workshop #1 9:00 am 

Friday, November 13, 2020 
Lakeside Hotel 

-Board Budget Workshop #1 
(delegations) 

9:00 am 

   
Thursday, November 19, 2020 
Via WebEx 

- Regular Board Meeting 9:00 am 

Friday, November 20, 2020 
Lakeside Hotel 

- Board Budget Workshop #2 9:00 am 

   
Thursday, November 26, 2020 
Lakeside Hotel 

- Strategic Planning Workshop#2 9:00 am 

   
Thursday, December 3, 2020 
Via WebEx 

- Regular Board Meeting 9:00 am 

Friday, December 4, 2020 
Lakeside Hotel 

- Board Budget Workshop #3 9:00 am 

   
Thursday, December 17, 2020 
Via WebEx 

- Regular Board Meeting 
 

9:00 am 

Friday, December 18, 2020 
Via WebEx 

- Board Budget Workshop #4 (if 
req’d) 

9:00 am 
 

 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
“Christy Malden” 
  
C. Malden, Manager of Legislative Services 

 



 
 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
BOARD of DIRECTORS MEETING 

Thursday, September 17, 2020 
10:45 am 

 
REGULAR AGENDA 

 
 
A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RECOMMENDATION 1 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT the Agenda for the RDOS Board Meeting of September 17, 2020 be adopted. 

 
1. Consent Agenda – Corporate Issues 

 
a. Environment and Infrastructure Committee – September 3, 2020 

THAT the Minutes of the September 3, 2020 Environment and Infrastructure Committee meeting 
be received. 
 

b. Planning and Development Committee – September 3, 2020 
THAT the Minutes of the September 3, 2020 Planning and Development Committee meeting be 
received. 
 
THAT the Regional District accept the Okanagan Falls 2020 Economic Development and Recovery 
Plan as a guiding document. 
 

c. RDOS Regular Board Meeting – September 3, 2020 
THAT the minutes of the September 3, 2020 RDOS Regular Board meeting be adopted. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 2 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT the Consent Agenda – Corporate Issues be adopted. 
 
 

2. Consent Agenda – Development Services  
 
a. Temporary Use Permit – 345 Kathleen Avenue, Electoral Area “E” 

1. Permit 
2. Representations 

 
THAT the Board of Directors approve Temporary Use Permit No. E2020.007-TUP 
 

b. Development Variance Permit – 2620 West Bench Drive, Electoral Area “F” 
1. Permit 

 
THAT the Board of Directors approve Development Variance Permit No. F2020.008-DVP 

  



RDOS Board Meeting 2 September 17, 2020 
 

 
 

c. Temporary Use Permit – District Lot 1838, SDYD, Except That Part Thereof Outlined Red on 
Plan B1374, Electoral Area “H” 
1. Permit 
2. Representations 

 
THAT the Board of Directors approve Temporary Use Permit No. H2020.009-TUP 
 

d. Electoral Area “E” Advisory Planning Commission (APC) Appointment  
THAT the Board of Directors appoint Debbie Selwood as a member of the Electoral Area “E” 
Advisory Planning Commission until October 31, 2022. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 3 (Unweighted Rural Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT the Consent Agenda – Development Services be adopted. 

 
 

B. DEVELOPMENT SERVICES – Rural Land Use Matters 
 
1. Zoning Bylaw Amendment – 2390 Coalmont Road, Electoral Area “H” 

a. Bylaw No.2498.22, 2020 
b. Representations 
 
RECOMMENDATION 4 (Unweighted Rural Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT Bylaw No. 2498.22, 2020, Electoral Area “H” Zoning Amendment Bylaw be read a first and 
second time and proceed to public hearing; 
 
AND THAT, the holding of a public hearing be scheduled for the Regional District Board meeting of 
October 15, 2020; 
 
AND THAT staff give notice of the pubic hearing in accordance with the requirements of the Local 
Government Act. 
 
 

2. Zoning Bylaw Amendment – Loose Bay, Electoral Area “C” 
a. Bylaw No.2453.38, 2020 
b. Representations 
 
RECOMMENDATION 5 (Unweighted Rural Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT Bylaw No. 2453.38, 2020, Electoral Area “C” Zoning Amendment Bylaw be read a first and 
second time and proceed to public hearing; 
 
AND THAT the holding of a public hearing be scheduled for the Regional District Board meeting of 
October 15, 2020; 
 
AND THAT staff give notice of the public hearing in accordance with the requirements of the Local 
Government Act. 
 
 

  



RDOS Board Meeting 3 September 17, 2020 
 

 
 

3. Agricultural Land Commission Referral (Non-Farm Use) –  1543 Maple Street, Electoral Area “D” 
 
RECOMMENDATION 6 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT the RDOS “not authorize” the application to allow a warehouse as a non-farm use on the 
parcel located at 1543 Maple Street, Okanagan Falls (Lot 2, Plan 14822, District Lot 551, SDYD) to 
proceed to the Agricultural Land Commission. 
 
 

C. FINANCE  
 
1. Utility Billing – Late Payment Fee 

 
RECOMMENDATION 7 (Weighted Corporate Vote – Majority) 
THAT the Regional District waive late payment charges to outstanding utility bill accounts up to, 
but not including, those balances that remain unpaid as at December 31st, 2020.  

 
 

D. LEGISLATIVE SERVICES 
 
1. Open Burning Regulations Bylaw 

 
RECOMMENDATION 8 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Majority) 
THAT Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Open Burning Regulations Bylaw No. 2898, 2020 
be read a first, second and third time and be adopted. 

 
 

E. CAO REPORTS  
 
1. Verbal Update 
 
 

F. OTHER BUSINESS 
 
1. Chair’s Report 
 

 
2. Board Representation  

a. BC Grape Growers Association and Starling Control – Bush, Monteith (Alternate) 
b. Municipal Finance Authority – Kozakevich (Chair), Holmes (Vice Chair, Alternate) 
c. Municipal Insurance Association – Kozakevich (Chair), Holmes (Vice Chair, Alternate) 
d. Okanagan Basin Water Board - McKortoff, Boot, Knodel, Pendergraft (Alternate to McKortoff), 

Holmes (Alternate to Boot), Monteith (Alternate to Knodel) 
e. Okanagan Film Commission – Gettens, Holmes (Alternate) 
f. Okanagan Regional Library – Kozakevich, Roberts (Alternate) 
g. Okanagan-Kootenay Sterile Insect Release Board – Bush, Knodel (Alternate) 
h. South Okanagan Similkameen Fire Chief Association – Pendergraft, Knodel, Monteith, Obirek, 

Roberts 
i. South Okanagan Similkameen Rural Healthcare Community Coalition (formerly Developing 

Sustainable Rural Practice Communities) – McKortoff, Bauer (Alternate) 
j. Southern Interior Municipal Employers Association – Knodel, Kozakevich (Alternate)  



RDOS Board Meeting 4 September 17, 2020 
 

 
 

 
3. Directors Motions 
 

a. Director’s Motion – Director Obirek 
THAT staff investigate the impacts of increasing agricultural reserves and agricultural operations 
to increase food security. 

 
 

 
4. Board Members Verbal Update 

 
 

G. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 



 
 

Minutes are in DRAFT form and are subject to change pending 
approval by the Regional District Board 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
Environment and Infrastructure Committee 

Thursday, September 3, 2020 
9:02 am 

 
Minutes of the Environment and Infrastructure Committee Meeting of the Regional District of 
Okanagan-Similkameen (RDOS) Board of Directors held at 9:02 am on Thursday, September 3, 2020 in 
the Boardroom, 101 Martin Street, Penticton, British Columbia. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  
Chair K. Kozakevich, Electoral Area “E” 
Vice Chair D. Holmes, District of Summerland 
Director M. Bauer, Village of Keremeos 
Director J. Bloomfield, City of Penticton 
Director T. Boot, District of Summerland 
Director G. Bush, Electoral Area “B” 
Director B. Coyne, Electoral Area “H” 
Director S. Coyne, Town of Princeton 
Director R. Gettens, Electoral Area “F” 
Director K. Robinson, City of Penticton 

 
Director R. Knodel, Electoral Area “C” 
Director S. McKortoff, Town of Osoyoos 
Director S. Monteith, Electoral Area “I” 
Director R. Obirek, Electoral Area “D” 
Director M. Pendergraft, Electoral Area “A” 
Director F. Regehr, City of Penticton 
Director T. Roberts, Electoral Area “G” 
Director J. Sentes, City of Penticton, Alternate  
Director P. Veintimilla, Town of Oliver 

MEMBERS ABSENT: 
Director J. Vassilaki, City of Penticton  
 

 
 

STAFF PRESENT:  
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 

  
C. Malden, Manager of Legislative Services 

 
 
A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RECOMMENDATION 1  
THAT the Agenda for the Environment and Infrastructure Committee Meeting of September 3, 2020 be 
adopted. 

 
 
B. DELEGATIONS 

1. Dan Buffett, CEO & Dave Conly, Habitat Conservation Trust Foundation 
Mr. Buffett and Mr. Conly will address the Board to share updated with regards to conservation and 
forest enhancement projects within the Regional District.  
a. Presentation 

 
 
C. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting was adjourned at 9:29 am 
 



Environment and Infrastructure Committee 2 September 3, 2020 
 
 

APPROVED: 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
G. Bush 
Committee Chair  

CERTIFIED CORRECT:  
 
 
 
_________________________ 
B. Newell 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 



 
 

Minutes are in DRAFT form and are subject to change pending 
approval by the Regional District Board 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
Planning and Development Committee 

Thursday, September 3, 2020 
9:29 am 

 
Minutes of the Planning Committee Meeting of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen (RDOS) 
Board of Directors held at 9:29 am on Thursday, September 3, 2020 in the Boardroom, 101 Martin 
Street, Penticton, British Columbia. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  
Chair K. Kozakevich, Electoral Area “E” 
Vice Chair D. Holmes, District of Summerland 
Director M. Bauer, Village of Keremeos 
Director J. Bloomfield, City of Penticton 
Director T. Boot, District of Summerland 
Director G. Bush, Electoral Area “B” 
Director B. Coyne, Electoral Area “H” 
Director S. Coyne, Town of Princeton 
Director R. Gettens, Electoral Area “F” 
Director K. Robinson, City of Penticton 

 
Director R. Knodel, Electoral Area “C” 
Director S. McKortoff, Town of Osoyoos 
Director S. Monteith, Electoral Area “I” 
Director R. Obirek, Electoral Area “D” 
Director M. Pendergraft, Electoral Area “A” 
Director F. Regehr, City of Penticton 
Director T. Roberts, Electoral Area “G” 
Director J. Sentes, City of Penticton, Alternate  
Director P. Veintimilla, Town of Oliver 

MEMBERS ABSENT: 
Director J. Vassilaki, City of Penticton  
 

 
 

STAFF PRESENT:  
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 

  
C. Malden, Manager of Legislative Services 

 
 
A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RECOMMENDATION 1  
IT WAS MOVED AND SECONDED 
THAT the Agenda for the Planning and Development Committee Meeting of September 3, 2020 be 
adopted. - CARRIED 

 
 

B. DELEGATION 
1. Brad Dollevoet, Kettle Valley Consulting 

Mr. Dollevoet addressed the Board with regards to Okanagan Falls Economic Development Strategic 
Plan 
 

RECOMMENDATION 2  
IT WAS MOVED AND SECONDED 
THAT the Regional District accept the Okanagan Falls 2020 Economic Development and Recovery Plan as 
a guiding document. - CARRIED 

 
 
C. ADJOURNMENT 



Planning and Development Committee 2 September 3, 2020 
 
 

The meeting was adjourned at 10:00 am 
 
 
 
 

APPROVED: 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
M. Pendergraft 
Committee Chair  

CERTIFIED CORRECT:  
 
 
 
_________________________ 
B. Newell 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 
 
  
 
 



 
 

 
0550-03 BD 

Minutes are in DRAFT form and are subject to change pending 
approval by the Regional District Board 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
Thursday, September 3, 2020 

10:00 am 
 

Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen (RDOS) Board 
of Directors held at 10:01 am on Thursday, September 3, 2020 in the Boardroom, 101 Martin Street, 
Penticton, British Columbia. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  
Chair K. Kozakevich, Electoral Area “E” 
Vice Chair D. Holmes, District of Summerland 
Director M. Bauer, Village of Keremeos 
Director J. Bloomfield, City of Penticton 
Director T. Boot, District of Summerland 
Director G. Bush, Electoral Area “B” 
Director B. Coyne, Electoral Area “H” 
Director S. Coyne, Town of Princeton 
Director R. Gettens, Electoral Area “F” 
Director K. Robinson, City of Penticton 

 
Director R. Knodel, Electoral Area “C” 
Director S. McKortoff, Town of Osoyoos 
Director S. Monteith, Electoral Area “I” 
Director R. Obirek, Electoral Area “D” 
Director M. Pendergraft, Electoral Area “A” 
Director F. Regehr, City of Penticton 
Director T. Roberts, Electoral Area “G” 
Director J. Sentes, City of Penticton, Alternate  
Director P. Veintimilla, Town of Oliver 

MEMBERS ABSENT: 
Director J. Vassilaki, City of Penticton  
 

 
 

STAFF PRESENT:  
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 

  
C. Malden, Manager of Legislative Services 

 
 

A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
RECOMMENDATION 1 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
IT WAS MOVED AND SECONDED 

 
THAT the Agenda for the RDOS Board Meeting of September 3, 2020 be adopted as amended to 
include item F.2. State of Local Emergency ratification. - CARRIED 

 
1. Consent Agenda – Corporate Issues 

 
a. Corporate Services Committee – August 6, 2020 

THAT the Minutes of the August 6, 2020 Corporate Services Committee meeting be received. 
 

b. Planning and Development Committee – August 6, 2020 
THAT the Minutes of the August 6, 2020 Planning and Development Committee meeting be 
received. 
 

c. Protective Services Committee – August 6, 2020 
THAT the Minutes of the August 6, 2020 Protective Services Committee meeting be received. 
 



RDOS Board Meeting 2 September 3, 2020 
 

 
d. RDOS Regular Board Meeting – August 6, 2020 

THAT the minutes of the August 6, 2020 RDOS Regular Board meeting be adopted. 
 

e. RDOS Regular Board Meeting – August 20, 2020 
THAT the minutes of the August 20, 2020 RDOS Regular Board meeting be adopted. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 2 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
IT WAS MOVED AND SECONDED 

THAT the Consent Agenda – Corporate Issues be adopted.  -  CARRIED 
 
 

B. DELEGATIONS 
 

1. Dr. Kent Mullinix and Kristi Tatebe, Kwantlen Polytechnic University 
Dr. Mullinix and Ms. Tatebe will address the Board to discuss agricultural opportunities for 
sustainable economic and community development.  
a. Presentation 
b. Project Update Summer 2020 

 
 

C. DEVELOPMENT SERVICES – Rural Land Use Matters 
 

1. Request to Re-submit a Refused Temporary Use Permit Application – Electoral Area “A” 
 
The Chair enquired whether the property owner was present.  The property owner addressed the 
Board. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 3 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
IT WAS MOVED AND SECONDED 

THAT the Board of Directors not vary Section 3.12.1. of the Development Procedures Bylaw No. 
2500, 2011 in relation to a proposed re-application of a temporary use permit application for a 
vacation rental use at 2839 37th Street (Lot 11, Plan 9792, District Lot 41, SDYD).  -  CARRIED 
Opposed – Directors Knodel and Bush. 

 
 
2. Zoning Bylaw Amendment – Electoral Area “A” 

a. Bylaw No. 2451.30 
 
RECOMMENDATION 4 (Unweighted Rural Vote – Simple Majority) 
IT WAS MOVED AND SECONDED 
THAT Bylaw No. 2451.30, 2020 Electoral Area “A” Zoning Amendment Bylaw be adopted. 
CARRIED 

 
 
3. Zoning Bylaw Amendment – Electoral Area “F” 

a. Bylaw No. 2461.14 
 
RECOMMENDATION 5 (Unweighted Rural Vote – Simple Majority) 
IT WAS MOVED AND SECONDED 

THAT Bylaw No. 2461.14, 2020 Electoral Area “F” Zoning Amendment Bylaw be adopted. 
CARRIED 



RDOS Board Meeting 3 September 3, 2020 
 

 
 
 

D. PUBLIC WORKS 
 
1. Award of Olalla and Naramata Watermain Replacement Project 

 
RECOMMENDATION 6 (Weighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
IT WAS MOVED AND SECONDED 

THAT the Regional District award the Olalla and Naramata Watermain Replacement Design project 
to Ecora Engineering and Resource Group Ltd. in the amount of $100,000 plus applicable taxes; and 
 
THAT the Regional District approve a contingency of $10,000 for value added or unexpected issues 
during the project.  -  CARRIED 

 
 

E. INFORMATION SERVICES 
 
1. Verbal Update – Information Systems 

 
 

F. COMMUNITY SERVICES  
 
1. Verbal Update – Christie Mountain Wildfire 
 
2. State of Local Emergency 

 
RECOMMENDATION 7 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
IT WAS MOVED AND SECONDED 

THAT the Board of Directors ratify the declaration of a State of Local Emergency for the 
Heritage Hills and Upper Carmi area within Electoral Area “D” commencing August 18th 
2020; and,  
 
THAT the Board of Directors ratify the extention of the State of Local Emergency for the 
Heritage Hills and Upper Carmi areas within Electoral Area “D” which expired on August 
24th 2020 at midnight for another seven days; and,  
 
THAT the Board of Directors ratify the rescinding of the State of Local Emergency for the 
Heritage Hills and Upper Carmi areas within Electoral Area “D” on August 27, 2020 at 13:00; 
and, 
 
THAT the Declarations approved by the Regional District be sent to the Minister of Public 
Safety and Solicitor General.  -  CARRIED 

 
 

G. CAO REPORTS  
 

1. Verbal Update 
 
 



RDOS Board Meeting 4 September 3, 2020 
 

 
H. OTHER BUSINESS 

 
1. Chair’s Report 

 
 
2. Directors Motions 

a. Director’s Motion – Director Pendergraft 
 

RECOMMENDATION 8 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
IT WAS MOVED AND SECONDED 
THAT the RDOS Board apply environmentally sensitive development permits (ESDPs) throughout 
the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen to only Subdivisions and rezonings; and further,  
 
THAT Staff report back to the Board on the options to make ESDPs more effective throughout 
the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen at Subdivisions and rezonings; and further,  
 
THAT ESDPs should in no way prevent or discourage residents of the Regional District of 
Okanagan-Similkameen from firesmarting their properties according to the firesmart principles.  
 
b. Director’s Notice of Motion – Director Obirek 

Increasing and Supporting Agriculture Reserves and Agriculture Operations related to Food 
Security. 

 
 
3. Board Members Verbal Update 

 
 

I. ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 11:40 am. 
 

APPROVED: 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
K. Kozakevich 
RDOS Board Chair  

CERTIFIED CORRECT:  
 
 
 
_________________________ 
B. Newell 
Corporate Officer 

 



 
 

                                                         File No: E2020.007-TUP 
Page 1 of 7 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
DATE: September 17, 2020 
 
RE: Temporary Use Permit Application – Electoral Area “E” 
 

Administrative Recommendation:  

THAT the Board of Directors approve Temporary Use Permit No. E2020.007-TUP 
 

Purpose:  To allow for a short-term vacation rental use through issuance of a TUP. 

Owners:   Valerie and Chad Taylor Agent: n/a Folio: E-00604.000 

Civic:  345 Kathleen Avenue Legal: Lot 3, Block 14, Plan 519, District Lot 210, SDYD   

OCP:  Low Density Residential (LR) Zone: Residential Single Family One (RS1) 
 

Proposed Development: 
This application is seeking a temporary use permit to authorize the operation of a short-term vacation 
rental use of a single detached dwelling, from May 1st to October 31st and which is to be comprised of 
three (3) bedrooms and a maximum occupancy of 6 people within the existing single detached 
dwelling with accommodation for three (3) parking stalls.  
 
Site Context: 
The subject property is approximately 836 m2 in area and is situated on the north side of Kathleen 
Avenue with vehicular access from the lane at the rear of the parcel.  It is understood that the parcel 
is comprised of a single detached dwelling and accessory structures (single car garage and shed). 

The surrounding pattern of development is generally characterised by similarly sized residential 
parcels that have been development with single detached dwellings in the immediate vicinity.  The 
broader neighbourhood includes Manitou Park and select parcels with high density residential 
towards Naramata Townsite and larger residential/agricultural parcels to the east toward Naramata 
Road. 
 
Background: 
Parcel Information 
The current boundaries of the subject property were created by the Plan of Naramata Townsite in July 
8th, 1908, while available Regional District records indicate that a building permits for an addition to a 
single detached dwelling (1990) and a woodstove (2001). 

In support of this TUP application, a Health & Safety Inspection was completed on August 28, 2020.   



  

                                                         File No: E2020.007-TUP 
Page 4 of 7 

An assessment from a ROWP regarding the septic system was provided and the property is serviced 
by a community water system. 

BC Assessment has classified the property as “Residential” (Class 01). 

Electoral Area “E” Official Community Plan 

Under the Electoral Area “E” Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 2458, 2008, the subject 
property is currently designated Low Density Residential (LR). 

Section 22 of the Electoral Area “E” OCP Bylaw contains the objective to consider allowing on-going 
short-term vacation rental uses on properties designated Residential through the issuance of 
Temporary Use Permits.  

This is also supported under Section 11 of the Electoral Area “E” OCP bylaw, which includes vacation 
rental policies that support paid accommodation for visitors through the short-term rental of 
residences provided that community and neighbourhood needs and other land use needs can be 
addressed (Section 11.6.1).  

Evaluation criteria in Section 11.6.2 of the Electoral Area “E” OCP bylaw for assessing applications 
includes:  

a) Capability of accommodating on-site domestic water and sewage disposal;  

b) Mitigating measures such as screening and fencing;  

c) Provision of adequate off-street parking;  

d) Confirmation that the structure proposed complies with the BC Building Code; and  

e) Benefits that such accommodation may provide to the community.  

Section 22.3.4 of the Electoral Area “E” OCP bylaw contains further criteria in evaluating temporary 
use permit applications. Section 17.3.5 and 17.3.6 specify conditions for temporary use permits and 
short-term vacation rentals respectively. Conditions specific to short-term vacation rentals are 
summarized as:  

a) The provision of screening or fencing in order to address potential impacts or to address 
neighbour privacy issues;  

b) The provision of the manager or owner’s contact information, as well as a copy of any issued TUP, 
to each neighbour whose property is located within 100 metres of the subject property;  

c) The availability or accessibility by telephone of the manager or owner;  

d) The posting of information for the property (i.e. noise, fire safety, location, garbage, septic system 
care, pet control);  

f) Maximum accommodation (occupancy of two per bedroom, up to 10 persons)  

g) Provision of one parking space per bedroom  

h) Prohibition of RV use or camping;  

i) Confirmation of minimum standard for health and safety; and  

j) Other requirements, as appropriate 



  

                                                         File No: E2020.007-TUP 
Page 4 of 7 

Electoral Area “E” Zoning Bylaw 

Under the Electoral Area “E” Zoning Bylaw No. 2459, 2008, the property is currently zoned Residential 
Single Family One (RS1) which permits single detached dwellings as a principal use, with limited 
accommodation for commercial uses in the form of “home occupations” and “bed and breakfast 
operations” as permitted secondary uses. 

COVID-19  

The Province of British Columbia has declared a state of emergency in response to the COVID-19 
pandemic. The Province has entered into “Phase 3”, which calls for those within BC or travelling from 
another province or territory to travel safely and respectively.  
 
Public Process: 
On August 5, 2020, a Public Information Meeting (PIM) was held electronically and was attended by 
no members of the public (RDOS staff, applicant and Area Director were present). 

Due to COVID-19, an Area “E” Advisory Planning Commission (APC) meeting was not held.  Area “E” 
APC members were provided the opportunity to comment individually on this application.  

Adjacent property owners will have received notification of this application with written comments 
regarding the proposal being accepted until the commencement of the regular Board meeting.  

All comments received to date in relation to this application are included as a separate item on the 
Board Agenda. 
 
Analysis: 
In considering this proposal, Administration notes that the Electoral Area “E” OCP Bylaw includes 
supportive policy for vacation rental uses in residential areas and outlines a number of criteria against 
which the Board will consider such a use. 

In response to the criteria outlined in Section 11.6.2, the applicant has provided a letter from a 
Registered On-site Wastewater Practitioner (ROWP) inspecting the septic tank and stating that 
“existing system should be sufficient” for intended use.   

With regards to screening and fencing, there is low fencing along the property boundary and 
established vegetation on the property. 

In terms of off-street parking, the applicant has submitted a site plan which shows provision of three 
parking stalls accessed from the lane at the rear of the subject parcel.  This includes a single car 
garage and two on-site surface parking spaces. 

A Health and Safety inspection was completed on August 28, 2020 and no deficiencies were noted.    

Conversely, Administration recognises that operation of a vacation rental will attract non-residents to 
the area and into an established residential neighbourhood during a Provincial State of Emergency for 
COVID-19.   

The intent of the Regional District’s “Vacation Rental Temporary Use Permit Policy”, and supportive 
OCP policies is to allow for a new vacation rental use to operate for one “season” in order to 
determine if such a use is inappropriate, incompatible or unviable at a particular location and, if so, to 
allow for the permit to lapse or not be renewed within a relatively short period.  



  

                                                         File No: E2020.007-TUP 
Page 4 of 7 

Given the Electoral Area “E” OCP Bylaw generally supports vacation rentals in residential areas, and 
the applicant has satisfied the criteria requirements for a three-bedroom vacation rental, it is 
recommended that the vacation rental be approved, with conditions. It is recommended that the 
following conditions are included in the TUP:  

• Term of Permit (To Expire December 31, 2021, to provide for one “full season”);  

• Vacation rental operator and guests adhere to provincial health orders during the Provincial State 
of Emergency for COVID-19;  

• Period of use (May –October);  

• Posting of information within vacation rental;  

• Maximum number of bedrooms (3);  

• Maximum occupancy (6);  

• Minimum number of on-site parking stalls (3);  

• Prohibition of camping or use of RVs or accessory buildings for vacation rental occupancy; and  

• Providing TUP and contact information to neighbours. 
 
Alternatives:  

1. THAT the Board of Directors deny Temporary Use Permit No. E2020.007-TUP; or 

2. THAT the Board of Directors defer consideration of Temporary Use Permit No. E2020.007-TUP for 
the following reasons: 

i) TBD 
 
Respectfully submitted:  Endorsed By:   

_____________________ _________________  
JoAnn Peachey, Planner I C. Garrish, Planning Manager  
 

Attachments:  No. 1 – Site Photo (Google Streetview) 

    
 
  
 
 

  
   

     
 
  



  

                                                         File No: E2020.007-TUP 
Page 7 of 7 

Attachment No. 1 – Site Photo (Google Streetview) 

    

 



 

Temporary Use Permit No. E2020.007-TUP 
 DRAFT VERSION – 2020-07-10 Page 1 of 6 

TEMPORARY 
USE PERMIT 

  

 
 

FILE NO.: E2020.007-TUP 
 

Owner: Valerie and Chad Taylor 
 345 Kathleen Avenue 
 Naramata, BC, V0H 1N0 

Agent: n/a 
  
  

 
 

GENERAL CONDITIONS  

1. This Temporary Use Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the bylaws of the 
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen applicable thereto, except as specifically varied 
or supplemented by this Permit. 

2. The land described shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions 
of this Permit, and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which shall form a 
part thereof. 

3. Where there is a conflict between the text of the permit and permit drawings or figures, 
the drawings or figures shall govern the matter. 

4. This Temporary Use Permit is not a Building Permit. 

 

APPLICABILITY 

5. This Temporary Use Permit applies to, and only to, those lands, including any and all 
buildings, structures and other development thereon, within the Regional District as shown 
on Schedules ‘A’, ‘B’, and ‘C’, and described below: 

Legal Description: Lot 3, 4 and 5, Plan 519, District Lot 210, SDYD 

Civic Address: 345 Kathleen Avenue, Naramata 

Parcel Identifier (PID): 003-703-207, 003-703-231, 003-703-248   

Folio:  E-00604.000 

 

TEMPORARY USE 

6. In accordance with Section 22.0 of the Electoral Area “E” Official Community Plan Bylaw 
No. 2458, 2008, the land specified in Section 5 may be used for a “vacation rental” use as 
defined in the Electoral Area “E” Zoning Bylaw, being the use of a residential dwelling unit 



 

Temporary Use Permit No. E2020.007-TUP 
 DRAFT VERSION – 2020-07-10 Page 2 of 6 

for the temporary commercial accommodation of paying guests for a period of less than 
one month. 

 

CONDITIONS OF TEMPORARY USE 

7. The vacation rental use of the land is subject to the following conditions: 

a) the vacation rental use shall occur only between May 1st and October 31st; 

b) the following information must be posted within the dwelling unit while the vacation 
rental use is occurring: 

i) the location of property lines by way of a map;  

ii) a copy of the Regional District’s Electoral Area “E” Noise Regulation and  
Prohibition Bylaw; 

iii) measures to address water conservation;  

iv) instructions on the use of appliances that could cause fires, and for evacuation of 
the building in the event of fire;  

v) instructions on the storage and management of garbage;  

vi) instructions on septic system care; and  

vii) instructions on the control of pets (if pets are permitted by the operator) in 
accordance with the Regional District’s Animal Control Bylaw.  

c) the maximum number of bedrooms that may be occupied by paying guests shall be 
three (3); 

d) the number of paying guests that may be accommodated at any time shall not exceed 
six (6); 

e) a minimum of three (3) on-site vehicle parking spaces shall be provided for paying 
guests; 

f) camping and the use of recreational vehicles, accessory buildings and accessory 
structures on the property for vacation rental occupancy are not permitted; and 

g) current telephone contact information for a site manager or the property owner, 
updated from time to time as necessary, as well as a copy of this Temporary Use Permit 
shall be provided to the owner of each property situated within 100 metres of the land 
and to each occupant of such property if the occupier is not the owner. 

h) Vacation rental operation must follow the Ministry of Health’s COVID-19 Guidance for 
the Hotel Sector during the Provincial State of Emergency, including environmental 
cleaning, staff health and communication, and any subsequent provincial health orders 
for hotel operators. 



 

Temporary Use Permit No. E2020.007-TUP 
 DRAFT VERSION – 2020-07-10 Page 3 of 6 

i) Information shall be posted within the dwelling unit during the Provincial State of 
Emergency for COVID-19 following Provincial recommended communication, signage 
and posters for the Hotel Sector on the following topics: 

i) Symptoms of COVID-19 

ii) B.C.’s COVID-19 Self-Assessment Tool 

iii) Handwashing  

iv) Respiratory/cough etiquette 

v) Self-isolation and self-monitoring 

j) A sign must be posted on the front entrance telling staff not to enter the premises if 
they are feeling ill.   

k) All guests must follow Provincial guidelines during the Provincial State of Emergency 
for COVID-19, including avoiding non-essential travel as a measure to protect 
vulnerable people in communities from COVID-19. 

 

COVENANT REQUIREMENTS 

8. Not applicable. 

 

SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 

 

EXPIRY OF PERMIT 

9. This Permit shall expire on December 31, 2021. 

 
 
 
Authorising resolution passed by Regional Board on   _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
 



 

Temporary Use Permit No. E2020.007-TUP 
                        DRAFT VERSION – 2020-07-10 Page 4 of 6 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Temporary Use Permit File No.  E2020.007-TUP 

Schedule ‘A’ 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

NNNARAMATA 

Subject 
Property 

OKANAGAN 
LAKE 

KATHLEEN AVE 

TH
IR

D 
ST

 

FO
U

RT
H 

ST
 

mailto:planning@rdos.bc.ca


 

Temporary Use Permit No. E2020.007-TUP 
                        DRAFT VERSION – 2020-07-10 Page 5 of 6 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Temporary Use Permit File No.  E2020.007-TUP 

Schedule ‘B’ 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:planning@rdos.bc.ca


 

Temporary Use Permit No. E2020.007-TUP 
                        DRAFT VERSION – 2020-07-10 Page 6 of 6 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Temporary Use Permit File No.  E2020.007-TUP 

Schedule ‘C’ 
 
 

mailto:planning@rdos.bc.ca
















 

                                                         File No: F2020.008-DVP 
Page 1 of 5 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
DATE: September 17, 2020 
 
RE: Development Variance Permit Application — Electoral Area “F” 
 

Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT the Board of Directors approve Development Variance Permit No. F2020.008-DVP 
 

Purpose:  To allow for the construction of an accessory structure 

Owners:   Erica Vran / David Howard Agent: n/a Folio: F2020.008-DVP 

Civic:  2620 West Bench Drive Legal: Lot 3, Plan 31722, District Lot 5076, ODYD  

OCP:  Small Holdings (SH) Zone: West Bench Low Density Residential (RS6) 

Variance Request: to increase the maximum height for an accessory building from 4.5 metres to 5.0 metres.   
 

Proposed Development: 
This application is seeking a variance to increase the maximum height for an accessory building to 
accommodate a one-stoey garage/workshop. 

Specifically, it is being proposed to increase the maximum height for an accessory building in the RS6 
zone from 4.5 metres to 5.0 metres.  

In support of this request, the applicant has stated that “we need storage and height allowance for a 
boat on its trailer and a motorhome.  To install a 14’ garage door, we need a minimum 15’ ceiling plus 
30” for engineered trusses.” 
 
Site Context: 
The subject property is approximately 1.23 ha in area and is situated on the west side of West Bench 
Drive, accessed by a panhandle. The property is currently developed and contains a single detached 
dwelling. 

The surrounding pattern of development is characterised by small holdings residential and the subject 
property immediately abuts undeveloped Penticton Indian Band lands to the west. 
 
Background: 
The current boundaries of the subject property were created by a Plan of Subdivision deposited with 
the Land Titles Office in Kamloops on March 12, 1981 while available Regional District records indicate 
that a building permits for a single detached dwelling (1993) and a pool have been issued for this 
property. 



  
 

                                                         File No: F2020.008-DVP 
Page 3 of 5 

Under the Electoral Area “F” Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 2790, 2018, the subject 
property is currently designated Small Holdings (SH), and is the subject of a Environmentally Sensitive 
Development Permit (ESDP) Area designation.  An ESDP has been issued for the proposed 
garage/workshop. 

Under the Electoral Area “F” Zoning Bylaw No. 2461, 2008, the property is currently zoned West 
Bench Low Density Residential (RS6) which allows for single detached dwellings as a principal use and 
accessory building, among other uses, as a secondary use.   

BC Assessment has classified the property as “Residential” (Class 01).  
 
Public Process:  
Adjacent property owners will have received notification of this application with written comments 
regarding the proposal being accepted until the commencement of the regular Board meeting.  Any 
comments will be on the agenda as separate item. 
 
Analysis: 

Regulating the height of accessory structures through the Zoning Bylaw is done to ensure that a 
building does not impact the shade and outdoor privacy of adjacent properties, or views to significant 
landmarks, water bodies or other natural features.   

Building height is also an important component of the built form of a neighbourhood and, depending 
upon the location of an accessory structure (i.e. near a street frontage) an excessive height can have 
an impact upon established streetscape characteristics. 

Accordingly, when assessing variance requests a number of factors are taken into account, including 
the intent of the regulation; the presence of any potential limiting physical features on the subject 
property; established streetscape characteristics; and whether the proposed development would 
have a detrimental impact upon the amenity of the area and/or adjoining uses.  

In this instance, Administration notes the location of proposed building is towards the rear of a 
panhandle parcel, with significant distance and grade change between the proposed building and the 
street, where the proposed building will not be visible from the street. 

Although there is some concern of the proximity of the garage to the southern parcel line, the 
additional height proposed does not facilitate a second storey or any windows over-looking 
neighbouring parcels that could not otherwise be built under the zoning bylaw.   

In response to impact to views, the neighbourhing dwellings are oriented to the south/southeast 
towards Okanagan Lake and the City of Penticton.  The proposed one-storey building is located 
behind the dwellings to the south, away from the lake.  The neighbouring dwelling to the north is at a 
higher elevation and not orientated towards the garage location.   

Conversely, Administration recognises that there is concern that large accessory buildings, like the 
one proposed, may be converted to an accessory dwelling or for living/sleeping facilities (bedroom) in 
the future or for a home industry use, both of which are not permitted in the SH6 zone.  

Nevertheless, and for these reasons outlined above, Administration supports the requested variance 
and is recommending approval. 
 



  
 

                                                         File No: F2020.008-DVP 
Page 3 of 5 

Alternatives: 

1. That the Board deny Development Variance Permit No. F2020.008-DVP. 

2. That the Board defer consideration of the application and it be referred to the Electoral Area “F” 
Advisory Planning Commission.  

 
 
Respectfully submitted  Endorsed by:   
 
______________ ________________  
JoAnn Peachey, Planner I  C. Garrish, Planning Manager  
 

Attachments:  No. 1 – Site Photo (Google Streetview) 

No. 2 – Site Photo (Google Earth)



  

 File No: F2020.008-DVP 
Page 5 of 5 

Attachment No. 1 – Site Photo (Google Streetview) 
 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

 File No: F2020.008-DVP 
Page 5 of 5 

Attachment No. 2 – Site Photo (Google Earth) 
 
 

 
 

  
 

PROPOSED GARAGE SITE 
(APPROXIMATE) 



 

Development Variance Permit No. F2020.008-DVP 
DRAFT VERSION – 2020-07-14  Page 1 of 6 

Development  
Variance Permit 

 

 
FILE NO.: F2020.008-DVP 

 
Owner: Erica Vran and David Howard 

2620 West Bench Drive 
Penticton, BC, V2A-8Z7 
 

 Agent: n/a 

 

GENERAL CONDITIONS  

1. This Development Variance Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the bylaws of the 
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen applicable thereto, except as specifically varied or 
supplemented by this Permit. 

2. The land described shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions 
and provisions of this Permit, and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit that 
shall form a part thereof. 

3. Where there is a conflict between the text of the permit and permit drawings or figures, the 
drawings or figures shall govern the matter. 

4. This Development Variance Permit is not a Building Permit. 
 

APPLICABILITY 

5. This Development Variance Permit is substantially in accordance with Schedules ‘A’, ‘B’, ‘C’,  
and ‘D’, and applies to and only to those lands within the Regional District described below, 
and any and all buildings, structures and other development thereon: 

Legal Description: Lot 3, Plan 31722, District Lot 5076, ODYD  

Civic Address: 2620 West Bench Drive 

Parcel Identifier (PID): 003-612-767               Folio: F-07409.170 
  

CONDITIONS OF DEVELOPMENT 

6. The land specified in Section 5 may be developed in accordance with the following variances 
to the Electoral Area “F” Zoning Bylaw No. 2461, 2008, in the Regional District of Okanagan-
Similkameen: 

a) the maxmim height for an accessory building or structure in the West Bench Small 
Holdings (SH6) Zone, as prescribed in Section 10.9.7 (b), is varied:  

i) from:  4.5 metres 



 

Development Variance Permit No. F2020.008-DVP 
DRAFT VERSION – 2020-07-14  Page 2 of 6 

to:  5.0 metres, as shown on Schedule ‘C’. 

 

COVENANT REQUIREMENTS 

7. Not Applicable 

 

SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 

8. Not applicable 

 
EXPIRY OF PERMIT 

9. The development shall be carried out according to the following schedule:  

a) In accordance with Section 504 of the Local Government Act and subject to the terms of 
the permit, if the holder of this permit does not substantially start any construction with 
respect to which the permit was issued within two (2) years after the date it was issued, 
the permit lapses.   

b) Lapsed permits cannot be renewed; however, an application for a new development 
permit can be submitted. 

 
 
 
Authorising resolution passed by the Regional Board on ________________, 2020. 
 
 
 

___________________________________ 
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
 
 
  

 



 

Development Variance Permit No. F2020.008–DVP 
 DRAFT VERSION – 2020-07-14 Page 3 of 6 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Tel: 250-492-0237    Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca  
 

Development Variance Permit                 File No.  F2020.008-DVP 
Schedule ‘A’ 

 

 
 

NN

PENTICTON 

Subject 
Parcel 

HYSLOP DR 

OKANAGAN 
 LAKE 

mailto:planning@rdos.bc.ca


 

Development Variance Permit No. F2020.008–DVP 
 DRAFT VERSION – 2020-07-14 Page 4 of 6 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 

Development Variance Permit File No. F2020.008-DVP 
Schedule ‘B’ 

 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:info@rdos.bc.ca


 

Development Variance Permit No. F2020.008–DVP 
 DRAFT VERSION – 2020-07-14 Page 5 of 6 

5.0 metres 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 

Development Variance Permit File No. F2020.008-DVP 
Schedule ‘C’ 

 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:info@rdos.bc.ca


 

Development Variance Permit No. F2020.008–DVP 
 DRAFT VERSION – 2020-07-14 Page 6 of 6 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 

Development Variance Permit File No. F2020.008-DVP 
Schedule ‘D’ 

 

 

mailto:info@rdos.bc.ca


 
 

                                                         File No: H2020.009-TUP 
Page 1 of 9 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
DATE: September 17, 2020 
 
RE: Temporary Use Permit Application – Electoral Area “H” 
 

Administrative Recommendation:  

THAT the Board of Directors approve Temporary Use Permit No. H2020.009-TUP 
 

Purpose:  To allow for the construction of a radio telescope. 

Owners:   HML Mining Inc. Agent: Mark Halpern Folio: H-01029.000 

Legal:  District Lot 1838, SDYD, Except That Part Thereof Outlined Red on Plan B1374      Civic: N/A 

OCP:  Resource Area (RA) Zoning: Resource Area (RA) 
 

Proposed Development: 

This application is seeking to build a radio telescope on portion of the subject property through 
issuance of a Temporary Use Permit (TUP).  In support of this proposal, the applicant has stated that: 

We wish to build a radio telescope on the site to aid us in identifying the host galaxies of fast radio 
bursts which we are studying with CHIME, a larger radio telescope which we have built at the 
Dominion Radio Astrophysical Observatory in Kaledan, 85 km to the East. Measuring the timing of 
signals arriving at the two instruments will help us to determine the direction to the source. The 
proposed radio telescope is safe. It has no moving parts, does not use high voltage and does not 
emit any radiation. It will not make noise except for an air-conditioner used to keep our electronics 
from overheating in the summer. We have licensed to use the land for five years, with an option to 
renew. At the end of our license we will remove the telescope. 

 
Site Context: 
The subject property is approximately 115.4 ha in area and is situated approximately 8 km south side 
from the Town of Princeton accessed by Allenby Road along the east side and bordered by 
Similkameen River along the west side. It is understood that the parcel is currently used for grazing 
cattle and is largely vacant land with tributaries from Similkameen River running through the 
property. 

The surrounding pattern of development is generally characterised by largely undeveloped lots with 
agricultural land along north side and rural land (large holdings) to the east, west and south side.  
 
Background:  



  

                                                         File No: H2020.009-TUP 
Page 5 of 9 

The current boundaries of the subject property were created by a Plan of Subdivision deposited with 
the Land Titles Office in Kamloops on March 24, 1998, while available Regional District records 
indicate that building permit have not previously been issued for this property. 

Under the Electoral Area “H” Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 2497, 2012, the subject 
property is currently designated Resource Area (RA) and is the subject of a Watercourse Development 
Permit (WDP) designation.  

Section 21.3 of Electoral Area “H” OCP Bylaw establishes the following criteria in evaluating a 
Temporary Use Permit application: 

• The use must be clearly temporary or seasonal in nature; 

• Compatibility of the proposal with adjacent uses; 

• Impact of the proposed uses on the natural environment, including groundwater, wildlife, and all 
environmentally sensitive areas; 

• Intensity of the proposed use; 

• Opportunity to conduct the proposed use on land elsewhere in the community; and  

• The remedial measures to be carried out to mitigate any damage to the natural environment as 
result of the temporary use. 

Under the Electoral Area “H” Zoning Bylaw No. 2498, 2012, the property is currently zoned Resource 
Area (RA) under which “Radio Astrophysical Observatory” is not a permitted use. 

BC Assessment has classified the property as “Residential” (Class 01). 

The subject property is understood to be within Archaeological Predictive Model, which may require a 
permit from Archeology Branch if land development activities impact an archaeological site. 

The subject site is currently being leased by the University of British Columbia (applicant) with the 
purpose “to build, operate and maintain a radio telescope”.  
 
Public Process: 
On August 17, 2020, a Public Information Meeting (PIM) was held electronically and was attended by 
one member of the public (RDOS staff and five members from applicant’s team were present). 
Due to COVID-19, an Area “H” Advisory Planning Commission (APC) meeting was not held. At the 
request of Area Director, the application was waived from being reviewed by Area “H” APC members. 

Adjacent property owners will have received notification of this application with written comments 
regarding the proposal being accepted until the commencement of the regular Board meeting. Any 
comments will be on the agenda as separate item. 

All comments received to date in relation to this application are included as a separate item on the 
Board Agenda. 
 
Analysis: 
In considering this proposal, Administration notes that the proposed location appears to be an ideal 
location to build a radio telescope given the location is relatively flat and the area in vicinity is largely 
undeveloped. 



  

                                                         File No: H2020.009-TUP 
Page 5 of 9 

It is also noted that the subject location was strategically chosen by scientist(s) at Canadian Hydrogen 
Intensity Mapping Experiment (CHIME) team, to provide significant but appropriate separation from 
the telescope located at Dominion Radio Astrophysical Observatory (DRAO) and acts as a catalyst in 
the study to determine more accurate location of host galaxies in outer space. 

Although the radio telescope will aid in studies already being undertaken at DRAO, unlike DRAO, no 
shielding from radio frequency interference (RFI) associated with human use is required as it does not 
emit any radiation. Hence, no further zoning regulations relating to RFI are necessitated with the use 
of the radio telescope. 

The radio telescope will be maintained by science team at CHIME, who also maintains radio telescope 
at DRAO, and anticipates one visit per month for maintenance purposes. No additional building or 
structures are proposed to be constructed to operate the radio telescope. 

To delineate the radio telescope from other activities occurring on site (cattle grazing), the land 
immediately near the telescope will be fenced off and the area outside the fence will not be 
interfered with the presence of the radio telescope. 

No new driveways are proposed to be built for the radio telescope. Subject site will be accessed by 
Allenby Road followed with a gravel pathway on site that leads to proposed construction location. 

Given that the area is largely secluded with three (3) existing residential dwellings within 1000 meters’ 
radius of the radio telescope, additional noise attenuation measures are not deemed necessary. 
However, Electoral Area ‘H’ does have a noise bylaw to ensure that persons in the vicinity will not be 
disturbed by noise that may be caused from the proposed use of site. 

Further, the proposed location of radio telescope is outside of the Environmentally Sensitive 
Development Permit Area and Watercourse Development Permit area as identified in Schedule ‘G’ 
and ‘H’ of the OCP Bylaw 2497, 2012 respectively, as such no environmental reports were required. 

Conversely, Administration recognises that subject site has number of tributaries originating from 
Similkameen River which are ecologically important and may act as source of food for valuable fish 
habitat. 

However, any works within 30 meters from the high water mark of these tributaries would require a 
Watercourse Development Permit at which stage a Qualified Professional will be required to 
undertake an assessment to identify impact to fish habitat in the area. 

In summary, given the nature of development and anticipated least impact on the neighbouring 
residential dwellings and environment, Administration is in support of subject Temporary Use Permit. 
 
Alternatives:  

1. THAT the Board of Directors deny Temporary Use Permit No. H2020.009-TUP; or 

2. THAT the Board of Directors defer consideration of Temporary Use Permit No. H2020.009-TUP 
and it be referred to the Electoral Area “H” Advisory Planning Commission. 

 
Respectfully submitted:  Endorsed By:   Attachments: 

Rushi Gadoya ________________   No. 1 – Agency Referral List 
R. Gadoya, Planning Technician C. Garrish, Planning Manager No. 2 – Applicant’s Site Plan  



  

                                                         File No: H2020.009-TUP 
Page 5 of 9 

Attachment No. 1 – Agency Referral List 

 Referrals have been sent to the following agencies as highlighted with a , prior to Board 
consideration of TUP No. H2020.009-TUP 

 Agricultural Land Commission (ALC)  Fortis 

 Interior Health Authority (IHA)  City of Penticton 

 Ministry of Agriculture  District of Summerland 

 Ministry of Energy, Mines & Petroleum 
Resources 

 Town of Oliver 

 Ministry of Municipal Affairs & Housing  Town of Osoyoos 

 Ministry of Environment  & Climate 
Change Strategy 

 Town of Princeton 

 Ministry of Forest, Lands, Natural 
Resource Operations & Rural 
Development (Archaeology Branch) 

 Village of Keremeos 

 Ministry of Jobs, Trade & Technology  Okanagan Nation Alliance (ONA) 

 Ministry of Transportation and 
Infrastructure 

 Penticton Indian Band (PIB) 

 Integrated Land Management Bureau  Osoyoos Indian Band (OIB) 

 BC Parks  Upper Similkameen Indian Band (USIB) 

 School District  #53 (Areas A, B, C, D & G)  Lower Similkameen Indian Band (LSIB) 

 School District  #58 (Area H)  Environment Canada 

 School District  #67 (Areas D, E, F, I)  Fisheries and Oceans Canada 

 Central Okanagan Regional District  Canadian Wildlife Services 

 Kootenay Boundary Regional District  OK Falls Irrigation District 

 Thompson Nicola Regional District  Kaleden Irrigation District 

 Fraser Valley Regional District   Irrigation District / improvement 
Districts / etc. 

 Naramata Volunteer Fire Department   



  

                                                         File No: H2020.009-TUP 
Page 8 of 9 

Attachment No. 2 – Applicant’s Site Plan 

    

 



Temporary Use Permit No. H2020.009-TUP 
  Page 1 of 6 

TEMPORARY 
USE PERMIT 

  

 
 

FILE NO.: H2020.009-TUP 
 

Owner: HML Mining Inc 
 200-580 Hornby St 
 Vancouver, BC V6C 3B6  

Agent: Mark Halpern 
 Department of Physics, UBC 
 Vancouver, BC, V6T 1Z1 

 
 

GENERAL CONDITIONS  

1. This Temporary Use Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the bylaws of the 
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen applicable thereto, except as specifically varied 
or supplemented by this Permit. 

2. The land described shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions 
of this Permit, and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which shall form a 
part thereof. 

3. Where there is a conflict between the text of the permit and permit drawings or figures, 
the drawings or figures shall govern the matter. 

4. This Temporary Use Permit is not a Building Permit. 

 

APPLICABILITY 

5. This Temporary Use Permit applies to, and only to, those lands, including any and all 
buildings, structures and other development thereon, within the Regional District as shown 
on Schedules ‘A’, ‘B’, ‘C’ and ‘D’ and described below: 

Legal Description: District Lot 1838, SDYD Except that part thereof outlined red 
on Plan B1374 

Civic Address: NA 

Parcel Identifier (PID): 011-458-321  Folio: H-01029.000 

 

TEMPORARY USE 

6. In accordance with Section 21.0 of the Electoral Area “H” Official Community Plan Bylaw 
No. 2497, 2012, the land specified in Section 5 may be used for a “radio astrophysical 
observatory”, which is defined as meaning the use land for astrophyscial observatory 
purposes by the means of radio telescope devices. 



Temporary Use Permit No. H2020.009-TUP 
  Page 2 of 6 

 

CONDITIONS OF TEMPORARY USE 

7. The “radio astrophysical observatory” use of the land is subject to the following conditions: 

a) The location of the radio telescope area not occur beyond the area labelled Section 1 
on Schedule ‘B’. 

 

COVENANT REQUIREMENTS 

8. Not applicable. 

 

SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 

9. Not applicable. 

 

EXPIRY OF PERMIT 

10. This Permit shall expire on September 17, 2023. 
 
 
Authorising resolution passed by Regional Board on   _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
 
___________________________________ 
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
 



 

Temporary Use Permit No. H2020.009-TUP 
 Page 6 of 6 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Temporary Use Permit File No.  H2020.009-TUP 

Schedule ‘A’

NN

PRINCETON 

Subject 
Property 

ALLENBY 

about:blank


 

Temporary Use Permit No. H2020.009-TUP 
 Page 6 of 6 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca   
 
Temporary Use Permit File No.  H2020.009-TUP 

Schedule ‘B’ 

Section 1 
(OUTLINED IN RED) 

Subject Property 
(OUTLINED IN BLACK HATCHED LINE) 

about:blank


 

Temporary Use Permit No. H2020.009-TUP 
 Page 6 of 6 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 

101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Temporary Use Permit File No.  H2020.009-TUP 

Schedule ‘C’ 

about:blank


 

Temporary Use Permit No. H2020.009-TUP 
 Page 6 of 6 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 

101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Temporary Use Permit File No.  H2020.009-TUP 

Schedule ‘D’  

about:blank










 
 

  
Page 1 of 1 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 

 
DATE:  September 17, 2020 
 
RE:  Electoral Area “E” Advisory Planning Commission (APC) Appointment 
 

Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT the Board of Directors appoint Debbie Selwood as a member of the Electoral Area “E” 
Advisory Planning Commission until October 31, 2022. 
 

Purpose: 
The purpose of this report is to seek direction from the Regional District Board regarding the 
appointment of Debbie Selwood as a member of the Electoral Area “E” Advisory Planning Commission 
(APC). 
 
Background: 
The role of Area Planning Commission is to provide recommendations to the Regional District on all 
matters referred to it by the Regional District or by its Electoral Area Director respecting land use, the 
preparation and adoption of an official community plan or a proposed bylaw and permits under 
Divisions 2, 7, 9 and 11 of Part 26 of the Local Government Act. 

Section 4 of Bylaw 2339 (Advisory Planning Commissions) provides for the appointment of members, 
requiring the Board, by resolution, to appoint members to each Commission on the recommendation 
of the respective Electoral Area Director.  

At least two-thirds of the members of a Commission for an Electoral Area shall be residents of that 
electoral area. Commission appointments shall be made by the Board for terms which run concurrent 
with the Board term, and no term of appointment shall extend beyond the term of the Electoral Area 
Director unless re-appointed by the Board.  
 
Analysis:  
The candidate has submitted an application to sit on the APC for Electoral Area “E”, and Director 
Kovakevich has recommended that her application be brought forward for appointment by the Board. 
 
Respectfully submitted:      
 
_________________________________   
J. Peachey, Planner I 



 
 

                                                         File No: H2020.007-ZONE 
Page 1 of 6 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
DATE: September 17, 2020 
 
RE: Zoning Bylaw Amendment – Electoral Area “H” 
 

Administrative Recommendation:  

THAT Bylaw No. 2498.22, 2020, Electoral Area “H” Zoning Amendment Bylaw be read a first and 
second time and proceed to public hearing; 

AND THAT, the holding of a public hearing be scheduled for the Regional District Board meeting of 
October 15, 2020; 

AND THAT staff give notice of the pubic hearing in accordance with the requirements of the Local 
Government Act. 
 

Purpose:  To rezone the subject property to allow for a 2-lot subdivision. 

Owners:   Madelaine McGrath & Carolann Brewer  Agent: ALLTerra Land Surveying Folio: H-00632.100 

Legal:  Lot A, Plan KAP69501, District Lot 101 151 391, YDYD         Civic: 2390 Coalmont Road 

OCP:  Large Holdings (LH) Proposed OCP: Large Holdings (LH) 

Zone:  Large Holdings Two (LH2) Proposed Zoning: Large Holdings One (LH1) 
 

Proposed Development: 
This application is seeking to amend the zoning of the subject property in order to create two 4.0 ha 
parcels. 

In order to accomplish this, the applicant is proposing to amend the zoning of the property from Large 
Holdings Two (LH2) to Large Holdings One (LH1). 

In support of the rezoning, the applicant has stated that, “the owners have owned this property since 
2006. The property is zoned LH2 which has a minimum parcel size of 8-hecatres. They would like to 
subdivide the property into two 4-hectare parcels, which requires a zoning of LH1 to meet the 
minimum area requirements. The OCP designates this property and the adjacent parcels as Large 
Holdings (LH), so no changes to the OCP will be required. They (owners) have identified several 
potential building site locations at the top and bottom of the hill. They intend to construct a home on 
the two new properties and are hoping to run a bed and breakfast on one of them.” 
 
Site Context: 
The subject property is approximately 8.0 ha in area and is situated approximately 1 km east of 
Tulameen on the north side of Coalmont Road. It is understood that the parcel is currently vacant. 



  

                                                         File No: H2020.007-ZONE 
Page 4 of 6 

The surrounding pattern of development is generally characterised by similarly sized Large Holdings 
Two zoned parcels on either sides of subject parcel. To the north is the Otter Mountain which is 
largely undeveloped. To the south, across Coalmont Road, is farmlands. 
 
Background:  
Parcel Information 
The current boundaries of the subject property were created by a Plan of Subdivision deposited with 
the Land Titles Office in Kamloops on August 1, 2001, while available Regional District records indicate 
that building permit(s) have not previously been issued for this property. 

BC Assessment has classified the property as “Residential” (Class 01). 

Subject property is understood to be within Archaeological Predictive Model, which may require 
permits from Archeology Branch for any land development activities that might occur on site. 

OCP Bylaw: 

Under the Electoral Area “H” Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 2497, 2012, the subject 
property is currently designated Large Holdings (LH), an objective of which includes large parcels of 
land generally used for ranching, grazing, general resource management, outdoor recreation, fish and 
wildlife habitat and other uses that fit within the character of this area. 

A portion of subject parcel (southern half) is within an Environmentally Sensitive Development Permit 
(ESDP) Area designation. 

Zoning Bylaw: 

Under the Electoral Area “H” Zoning Bylaw No. 2498, 2012, the property is currently zoned Large 
Holdings Two (LH2), which specifies a minimum parcel size for subdivision of 8.0 ha, whereas the 
Large Holdings One (LH1) Zone specifies a minimum parcel size of 4.0 ha.  

Subdivision Application: 

On March 13, 2020, the Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure (MoTI) referred a proposed two 
(2) lot subdivision involving the subject property to the Regional District for compliance with any 
applicable RDOS land use bylaws.  In reviewing this proposal, it was determined that a zoning 
amendment is required in order to allow the creation of two 4.0 ha parcels. 
 
Referrals: 
Approval from the Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure (MoTI) is not required prior to 
adoption as the proposed amendments involve lands beyond 800 metres of a controlled access 
highway (i.e. Highway 5A & 3). 
 
Public Process: 
On August 10, 2020, a Public Information Meeting (PIM) was held electronically and was attended by 
no members of the public (RDOS staff & both owners were present). 

Due to COVID-19, an Area “H” Advisory Planning Commission (APC) meeting was not held. Area “H” 
APC members were provided the opportunity to comment individually on this application. 



  

                                                         File No: H2020.007-ZONE 
Page 4 of 6 

Attachments: 

No. 1 – Applicant’s Site Plan 
No. 2 – Site Photo 

An early notification was provided to adjacent property owners, in response to which staff have 
received three (3) letters of supports regarding the proposal. 

All comments received to date in relation to this application are included as a separate item on the 
Board Agenda. 
 
Analysis: 
In considering this proposal, Administration notes that the proposed zoning designation change from 
LH2 to LH1 is generally consistent with the LH designation under the OCP Bylaw. 

While the proposal is to create two parcels (each of size 4.0 ha), no significant impact is anticipated on 
the neighbouring properties as the subject property is located in proximity to SH4 zoned lots with 
parcels ranging from 0.5 ha to 1.0 ha.  

Regarding servicing of lots, each parcel will have to be serviced by a ground water well and septic 
system that meets the Regional District’s Subdivision Servicing Bylaw requirements 

The eastern lot is proposed to be accessed through existing driveway, and a new driveway will be 
constructed to service the proposed western lot from Coalmont Road. 

Further, an environmental assessment was submitted in support of proposed rezoning, which 
indicated that the proposal will not result in either new parcel having restrictions that would preclude 
development and that the construction of a new house on the western half (proposed new lot) will 
not require any clearing or blasting. 

Conversely, Administration recognises that the topography is challenging and that the current 7.8 ha 
parcel size may be the most appropriate for this particular location. 

In summary, Administration supports the proposed zoning amendment bylaw, to allow creation of 
two parcels of size not less than 4.0 ha as it is seen to have no significant impact on surrounding 
properties or the environment and generally fits with the existing rural character of the 
neighbourhood. 
 
Alternatives:  

1. THAT Bylaw No. 2498.22, 2020, Electoral Area “H” Zoning Amendment Bylaw be read a first 
and second time and proceed to public hearing; 

AND THAT, the holding of a public hearing be scheduled for the Regional District Board 
meeting of October 15, 2020; 

AND THAT staff give notice of the pubic hearing in accordance with the requirements of the 
Local Government Act.  

2. THAT Bylaw No. 2498.22, 2020, Electoral Area “H” Zoning Amendment Bylaw be deferred; or 

3. THAT Bylaw No. 2498.22, 2020, Electoral Area “H” Zoning Amendment Bylaw be denied. 
 
Respectfully submitted:  Endorsed By:   

Rushi Gadoya ______________________ 
R. Gadoya, Planning Technician C. Garrish, Planning Manager  



  

                                                         File No: H2020.007-ZONE 
Page 6 of 6 

Attachment No. 1 – Applicant’s Site Plan 

    

  



  

                                                         File No: H2020.007-ZONE 
Page 6 of 6 

 Attachment No. 2 – Site Photo (Google Streetview) 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2498.22, 2020 
(H2020.007-ZONE) 

  Page 2 of 2 
 

 _________________ 
 

BYLAW NO. 2498.22 
 _________________ 

 
  

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 

 BYLAW NO.  2498.22, 2020 

 
 

A Bylaw to amend the Electoral Area “H” Zoning Bylaw No. 2498, 2020 
 

The REGIONAL BOARD of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen in open meeting 
assembled, ENACTS as follows: 
 

1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the “Electoral Area “H” Zoning Amendment 
Bylaw No. 2498.22, 2020.” 

 
2. The Official Zoning Map, being Schedule ‘2’ of the Electoral Area “H” Zoning Bylaw No. 

2498, 2012, is amended by: 

i) changing the land use designation on the land described as Lot A, Plan 69501, District 
Lot 101 151 391, YDYD, and shown shaded yellow on Schedule ‘A’, which forms part of 
this Bylaw, from Large Holdings Two (LH2) to Large Holdings One (LH1). 

 
 
 
READ A FIRST AND SECOND TIME this _____ day of ___________, 2020 
 
PUBLIC HEARING held on this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
READ A THIRD TIME this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
ADOPTED this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
_______________________      _________________________ 
Board Chair Corporate Officer 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2498.22, 2020 
(H2020.007-ZONE) 

  Page 2 of 2 
 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Tel: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca 
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2498.22, 2020 File No.  H2020.007-ZONE 

Schedule ‘A’ 

NN

TULAMEEN 

Subject 
Parcel 

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2498, 2012: 
from:  Large Holdings Two (LH2) 
to:  Large Holdings One (LH1) 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 

 

about:blank














 
 

                                                         File No: C2020.010-ZONE 
Page 1 of 7 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
DATE: September 17, 2020  
 
RE: Zoning Bylaw Amendment – Electoral Area “C” 
 

Administrative Recommendation:  

THAT Bylaw No. 2453.38, 2020, Electoral Area “C” Zoning Amendment Bylaw be read a first and 
second time and proceed to public hearing; 

AND THAT the holding of a public hearing be scheduled for the Regional District Board meeting of 
October 15, 2020;  

AND THAT staff give notice of the public hearing in accordance with the requirements of the Local 
Government Act. 
 

Purpose:  To formalize the operation of the “Loose Bay” campground on the subject property.  

Owners:   Crown Land Agent: RDOS                                        Folio: C-05193.008 

Legal:  Block A, Plan KAP1729, District Lot 2450S, SDYD Civic: 500 Secrest Hill Road 

OCP:  Agriculture (AG) Proposed OCP: Agriculture (AG) 

Zone:  Agriculture Two (AG2) Proposed Zoning: Agriculture Two – Site Specific (AGs) 
 

Proposed Development: 

This application is seeking to amend the zoning of the subject property to formalize the operation of 
the “Loose Bay” campground on the subject property.  

The Area “C” Zoning Bylaw must be amended from AG2 to AG2s with the site specific regulation to 
allow “campground” as a permitted use.  

The “Loose Bay” campground provides an important accommodation option for labourers working at 
orchards, vineyards and other agricultural operations in the area. Formalisation of the use will also 
allow for the issuance of building permits for the installation of proper facilities generally associated 
with a campground; such as washroom, laundry and shower buildings.  

The Regional District is the applicant and the Ministry of Agriculture is providing funding in order that 
these improvements can be undertaken, and in recognition of the importance of “Loose Bay” to the 
local farm economy. 
 
Site Context: 



  

                                                         File No: C2020.010-ZONE 
Page 2 of 7 

The subject area is approximately 5.5 ha in area and is situated at the north-east corner of the 
intersection of Secrest Hill Road and Covert Farms, 6.5 km north of the Town of Oliver. The parcel 
comprises various structures associated with an existing campground use. 

The surrounding pattern of development is generally characterised by an agricultural operation 
(Covert Farm) to the north and undeveloped Crown land to the east, west and south. 
 
Background: 

The Regional District has held a License of Occupation on an approximately 3.62 ha parcel of Crown 
land where Loose Bay Campground is located for the past 20-25 years.  

At its meeting of January 19, 2017, the Regional District adopted Bylaw No. 2757, 2016, to establish a 
Campground Service in Area “C”. This bylaw allowed the Regional District to operate a campground, 
enter into contracts, own assets (land, water connection pipe, and any other improvements), borrow 
for a capital purpose, and addressed the discontinuance of a potable water supply from the 
neighbouring property to the campground use.  

In June, 2020, the Ministry of Agriculture provided a grant of $200,000, to assist with COVID-19 
compliance and to purchase new washroom/shower/laundry facilities. 

At its meeting of July 16, 2020, RDOS resolved to “authorize” an ALC application to proceed to allow a 
commercial campground as a non-farm use on and around the parcel, and initiated an amendment to 
the Area “C” OCP and Zoning Bylaw in order to formalise the campground.  

On July 24, 2020, the Agricultural Land Commission issued a conditional approval indicating overall 
support for the project. One key ALC condition is to retain the Agriculture zoning and use a site-
specific amendment process, rather than a “commercial campground” rezoning and OCP amendment.  

The Area “C” OCP Bylaw designates the subject property as AG and is designated as an Important 
Ecosystem Area (IEA) under Schedule ‘C’ of the bylaw.  The property is zoned AG2, which permits a 
range of uses related to agriculture but does not permit “campground”.  The subject area is within the 
Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR) and has been classified as “Residential” (Class 01) by BC Assessment. 
 
Referrals: 
Approval from the Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure (MoTI) is not required prior to 
adoption as the proposed amendments involve lands beyond 800 metres of a controlled access 
highway (i.e. Highway 97). 

Pursuant to Section 475 of the Local Government Act, the Regional District must consult with the 
Agricultural land Commission (ALC) when proposing to amend an OCP which might affect agricultural. 
Both the ALC and the Ministry of Agriculture have been made aware of the proposed amendment 
bylaw.   
 
Public Process: 
On August 25, 2020, an electronic Public Information Meeting (PIM) was held, and was attended by 
one Board member and no members of the public. 

At its meeting of September 8, 2020, the Area “C” Advisory Planning Commission (APC) is scheduled 
to discuss the subject bylaw amendment, and the APC’s recommendation will be presented verbally 



  

                                                         File No: C2020.010-ZONE 
Page 2 of 7 

to the Board.   All comments received to date in relation to this application are included as a separate 
item on the Board Agenda. 
 
Analysis: 
The “Loose Bay” campground has a long history of serving the needs of migrant farm labour and an 
objective of the OCP is “to encourage the agricultural sector’s improvement and expansion by 
pursuing supportive land use policies within and adjacent to farming areas.”  

This rezoning is required to issue permits and construct necessary improvements, to ensure the 
campsite can operate in a safe and healthy manner given the COVID-19 pandemic. Formalisation of 
the campground will allow for an upgrading of infrastructure to serve patrons, including improved 
washroom, laundry and shower facilities. 

Conversely, lands capable of accommodating such a campground may exist elsewhere on non-
agricultural lands. However, it is not clear that development of such lands are feasible or provide the 
same level of convenience and oversight as the current location.  Administration considers that its 
current and long-term use by migrant farm labour exceeds its agricultural potential, and that the 
“Loose Bay” campground supports and helps sustain farming activity in the area.    
 
Alternatives:  

1. THAT Bylaw No. 2453.38, 2020, Electoral Area “C” Zoning Amendment Bylaw be read a first and 
second time and proceed to public hearing; 

AND THAT the holding of the public hearing be delegated to Director Knodel, or their delegate; 

AND THAT staff schedule the date, time, and place of the public hearing in consultation with 
Director Knodel; 

AND THAT staff give notice of the public hearing in accordance with the requirements of the Local 
Government Act. 

2. THAT Bylaw No. 2453.38, 2020, Electoral Area “C” Zoning Amendment Bylaw be deferred; or 

3. THAT Bylaw No. 2453.38, 2020, Electoral Area “C” Zoning Amendment Bylaw be denied. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted:   Endorsed By:  

     Cory Labrecque                               ________________________ 
Cory Labrecque, Planner II  C. Garrish, Planning Manager 
 

Attachments:  No. 1 – Applicant’s Site Plan 

 No. 2 – Site Plan Showing Service Locations 

 No. 3 – Site Photos   



  

                                                         File No: C2020.010-ZONE 
Page 7 of 7 

Attachment No. 1 – Site Plan 

    

  



  

                                                         File No: C2020.010-ZONE 
Page 7 of 7 

 Attachment No. 2 – Site Plan Showing Service Locations 

     

  



  

                                                         File No: C2020.010-ZONE 
Page 7 of 7 

Attachment No. 3 – Site Photos 

      



Amendment Bylaw No. 2453.38, 2020 
(C2020.009-ZONE) 

  Page 1 of 3 

 _________________ 
 

BYLAW NO. 2453.38 
 _________________ 

 
  

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 

 BYLAW NO.  2453.38, 2020 

 
 

A Bylaw to amend the Electoral Area “C” Zoning Bylaw No. 2453, 2008  
 

The REGIONAL BOARD of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen in open meeting 
assembled, ENACTS as follows: 
 

1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the “Electoral Area “C” Zoning Amendment 
Bylaw No. 2453.38, 2020.” 
 

2. Electoral Area “C” Zoning Bylaw no. 2453, 2008 is amended by: 
 
i) adding a new Section 17.3.6 under Section 17.3 (Site Specific Agricultural Two (AG2s) 

Designations) to read as follows: 

.6   In the case of approximately 5.2 ha of Crown land, including the land described as 
Block A, Plan KAP1729, District Lot 2450S, SDYD, Lease/Permit/Licence # 345722, 
and a portion of surrounding Crown land, and shown shaded yellow on Figure 
17.3.6: 

i) the following principal uses shall be permitted on the land in addition to the  
permitted uses listed in Section 10.3: 

a)  campground. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2453.38, 2020 
(C2020.009-ZONE) 

  Page 2 of 3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
3. The Official Zoning Map, being Schedule ‘2’ of the Electoral Area “C” Zoning Bylaw No. 

2453, 2008, is amended by changing the land use designation of approximately 5.2 ha of 
Crown land, including the land described as Block A, Plan KAP1729, District Lot 2450S, SDYD, 
Lease/Permit/Licence # 345722, and a portion of surrounding Crown land, as shown shaded 
yellow on Schedule ‘A’, which forms part of this Bylaw, from Agriculture Two (AG2) to 
Agriculture Two Site Specific (AG2s).  

 
READ A FIRST AND SECOND TIME this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING held on this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
READ A THIRD TIME this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
ADOPTED this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
 
_______________________      _________________________ 
Board Chair Corporate Officer 

Agriculture Two 
Site Specific (AG2s) 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 

NN

Figure 17.3.6 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2453.38, 2020 
(C2020.009-ZONE) 

  Page 3 of 3 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Tel: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca 
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2453.38, 2020 File No.  C2020.009-ZONE 

Schedule ‘A’ 
  
 

 
  
 
  
 
 
 
  

NN

OLIVER 

Subject 
Lands 

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2453, 2008: 
from:  Agriculture Two (AG2) 
to:  Agriculture Two Site Specific (AG2s) 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 

 

mailto:info@rdos.bc.ca


















 
 

                                                         File No: D2020.011-ALC 
Page 1 of 9 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
DATE: September 17, 2020 
 
RE: Agricultural Land Commission Referral (Non-Farm Use) – Electoral Area “D” 
 

Administrative Recommendation:  

THAT the RDOS “not authorize” the application to allow a warehouse as a non-farm use on the 
parcel located at 1543 Maple Street, Okanagan Falls (Lot 2, Plan 14822, District Lot 551, SDYD) to 
proceed to the Agricultural Land Commission. 
 

Purpose:  To allow for a warehouse for farm use within the ALR 

Owners:   Shuttleworth Creek Vineyard Ltd.  Agent: Larry Gerelus  Folio: D-03459.020 

Legal:  Lot 2, Plan 14822, District Lot 551, SDYD  Civic: 1543 Maple Street 

OCP:  Agriculture (AG) Zone: Agriculture One Zone (AG1)  
 

Proposed Development: 
An application to the Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) under Section 20 of the Agricultural Land 
Commission Act (the Act) has been lodged with the Regional District in order to allow for a 
“warehouse for farm use” as a non-farm use within the Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR). 

Specifically, the applicant is seeking approval to use the warehouse for the storage of finished wine, 
vineyard equipment and supplies from two separate wineries. 

In support of this proposal, the applicant has stated that “if this warehouse was on one of the winery 
sites it would be considered a farm use warehouse but because a winery is not located on the same 
property, it falls into a non-farm use category.  The decision to locate the warehouse here rather than 
on one of the winery sites is that it is an ideal location for wine storage.  The property is flat and the 
logistics of receiving and shipping is very efficient on this property.” 
 
Statutory Requirements:  
Under Section 34(4) of the Agricultural Land Commission Act, the Regional District of Okanagan-
Similkameen (RDOS) must “review the application, and … forward to the commission the application 
together with [its] comments and recommendations”, unless Section 25(3) applies wherein the Board 
has the ability to refuse to “authorise” an application. 

In this instance, Section 25(3) is seen to apply as the property “is zoned by bylaw to permit [an] 
agricultural or farm use” will be required in order for the development to proceed.   



  

                                                         File No: D2020.011-ALC 
Page 5 of 9 

Section 25(3) of the Act grants the Board the authority to not “authorise” an application to proceed to 
the ALC if the land is zoned by bylaw to permit an agricultural or farm use, or an amendment to an 
Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw or Zoning Bylaw would be required for the proposal to proceed. 
 
Site Context: 
The subject property is approximately 7.4 ha in area and is situated on the east side of Maple Street in 
Okanagan Falls.  It is understood that the parcel is comprised of a single detached dwelling and one 
accessory structure (garage) and has approximately 5.6 ha of vineyard. 

The surrounding pattern of development is generally characterised by agricultural land to the north 
and industrial lands to the west, south and east containing vacant lands and a mix of other uses.  
There are also residential lands to the northeast in the form of a mobile home park. 
 
Background: 
The current boundaries of the subject property were created by a Plan of Subdivision deposited with 
the Land Titles Office in Kamloops on February 9, 1965, while available Regional District records 
indicate that building permit have not previously been issued for this property. 

Under the Electoral Area “D” Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 2603, 2013, the subject 
property is currently designated Agriculture (AG), with policies that speak to maintaining the integrity 
of land suitable for agriculture (Section 9.2.3), preventing encroachment of non-farm land uses 
(Section 9.2.7), and encourage farm related commercial businesses, that do not conflict with adjacent 
properties (Section 9.2.15). 

The property is also the subject of a Watercourse Development Permit (WDP) and Environmentally 
Sensitive Development Permit (ESDP) Area designations. 

Under the Electoral Area “D” Zoning Bylaw No. 2455, 2008, the property is currently zoned 
Agriculture One (AG1) which permits, among other uses, “packing, processing and storage of farm and 
off-farm products” as a principal use. 

The property is entirely within the Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR) and has classified as part 
“Residential” (Class 01) and part “Farm” (Class 09) by BC Assessment. 

On August 6, 2020, the ALC reviewed a Notice of Intent (NoI) to remove soil and place fill over an 
approximately 1,326.6 m2 of ALR land for a warehouse and concluded this was inconsistent with its 
regulations as the warehouse was not at an alcohol production facility and therefore not ancillary. 
 
Analysis: 
In considering this proposal, Administration notes that the subject property is designated as 
Agriculture, under which the Electoral Area “D” OCP Bylaw seeks to maintain land suitable for 
agriculture, prevent encroachment of non-farm uses onto agricultural lands, and to “to encourage the 
agricultural sector’s improvement and expansion by pursuing supportive land use policies within and 
adjacent to farming areas.”  

Administration recognises that the intent of agricultural lands is for growing agricultural crops for 
providing food, horticultural, medicinal or farm products and the amount of viable farm lands within 
the Province is limited.   



  

                                                         File No: D2020.011-ALC 
Page 5 of 9 

Attachments:   
No. 1 – Context Maps 
No. 2 – Applicant’s Site Plan 
No. 3 – Applicant’s Building Elevations 
No. 4 – Applicant’s Floor Plan (Ground Level) 
No. 5 – Applicant’s Floor Plan (Mezzanine) 

As there is no nexus between the warehousing of finished wine and the agricultural use on the subject 
property, Administration has concerns that the warehouse facility is more of a stand-alone 
commercial/industrial use and not agricultural. 

Of further concern is the scale of the warehouse operation, where 826 m2 is dedicated for wine 
storage for off-site wineries.  

Further, “packing, processing and storage of farm and off-farm products” is permitted in the 
neighbouring industrial park lands (I1 zone) that are not used for growing crops, as well as other 
commercial/light industrial lands within the Regional District and City of Penticton.   

As such, there appears to be viable alternatives by locating elsewhere and in areas that are more 
appropriate for a commercial warehouse by not encroaching on viable farmlands. 

Although the Zoning Bylaw broadly allows for “packing, processing and storage of farm and off-farm 
products” as a principal use, not an ancillary or secondary use to agriculture or an alcohol production 
facility (i.e. winery), the Zoning Bylaw may not align with the Agriculture or ALR designation. 

Further, the “packing, processing and storage of farm and off-farm products” use is undefined under 
the Zoning Bylaw and leaves room for interpretation as to what was intended to be permitted under 
such a provision.   

Conversely, the proposed “warehouse” facility supports agricultural operations in general, as it will be 
used to support two other wineries under the same ownership.   

The warehouse will support the vineyard operation on site through storage of vineyard equipment 
and offices/lab, as well as storage of farm products from off-site wineries (i.e. finished wine).  Both 
uses are considered consistent with the AG1 zone. 
The impetus of the application is due to the absence of a winery on site (i.e. no processing of grapes 
at this location and no winery licence), which is a distinction not recognized under the Electoral Area 
“D” Zoning Bylaw.     

At this time, Administration does not consider the proposal to be a greater benefit to the agricultural 
sector in general than what would be lost by allowing an industrial use on viable farmland.    
 
Alternatives:  

1. THAT the RDOS Board “authorize” the application to allow a warehouse as a non-farm use on the 
parcel located at 1543 Maple Street, Okanagan Falls (Lot 2, Plan 14822, District Lot 551, SDYD) to 
proceed to the Agricultural Land Commission; OR 

2. THAT the Board of Directors defers making a decision and directs that the proposal be considered 
by the Electoral Area “D” Advisory Planning Commission (APC). 

 
 
Respectfully submitted:  Endorsed By:    

_____________________ _________________  
JoAnn Peachey, Planner I C. Garrish, Planning Manager 
  



  

                                                         File No: D2020.011-ALC 
Page 5 of 9 

NN

Attachment No. 1 – Context Maps 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OKANAGAN 
FALLS 

Subject 
Property 

SKAHA LAKE 



  

                                                         File No: D2020.011-ALC 
Page 9 of 9 

Attachment No. 2 – Applicant’s Site Plan 

    

  



  

                                                         File No: D2020.011-ALC 
Page 9 of 9 

Attachment No. 3 – Applicant’s Building Elevations 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

                                                         File No: D2020.011-ALC 
Page 9 of 9 

Attachment No. 4 – Applicant’s Floor Plans (Ground Floor) 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

                                                         File No: D2020.011-ALC 
Page 9 of 9 

Attachment No. 5 – Applicant’s Floor Plans (Mezzanine) 

        



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2020/20200917/Board Reports/C.1. UB Late Payment 
Resolution.Docx File No: Click here to enter 
text. 
Page 1 of 1 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
DATE: September 17, 2020 
RE: Utility Billing – Late Payment Fee 

Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT the Regional District waive late payment charges to outstanding utility bill accounts up to, 
but not including, those balances that remain unpaid as at December 31st, 2020.  
 
Reference: 

Bylaw 2877, RDOS Fees and Charges Bylaw 
 
Background: 

Section 2.2. of the Fees and Charges Bylaw requires a 10% charge to outstanding balances for utility 
accounts one working day past the payment due date. 
 
The failed ransomware attack on August 10th has rendered the RDOS financial systems largely 
inoperable.  Payments on account have been accepted at the Front Counter, but not processed 
against accounts receivable.  As well, we cannot currently create or email third quarter utility bills 
to our customers on the Naramata Water System. 

Analysis: 

Until our systems are fully operational it would be difficult to apply the late payment penalty in a 
fair and consistent manner. 
 
In 2019 late payment charges applied at August 31st were $35,000.00, so this amount of revenue 
may be foregone in 2020 based on last years’ experience, but that revenue is unbudgeted. 
 
Any unpaid amounts that remain outstanding at December 31, 2020 will be assessed a penalty in 
accordance with the RDOS Fees & Charges Bylaw and transferred to taxes. 
 
Alternatives: 

Status Quo  
 
Respectfully submitted: 

“John Kurvink, Manager of Finance/CFO” 
____________________________________ 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2020/20200917/Board Reports/C.1. UB Late Payment 
Resolution.Docx File No: Click here to enter 
text. 
Page 2 of 2 
 

J. Kurvink, Finance Manager 

 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2020/20200917/Board Reports/D.1. BL2898 Rpt.Docx File No: 
BL2898 
Page 1 of 2 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
  
TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: September 17, 2020 
  
RE: Open Burning Regulations Bylaw 
 
Administrative Recommendation: 
 
THAT Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Open Burning Regulations Bylaw No. 2898, 
2020 be read a first, second and third time and be adopted. 
 
Purpose: 
To update the open burning regulations to ensure community safety, ease of use, and compliance 
with Provincial legislation. 
 
Reference: 
BC Wildfire Act Wildfire Regulation 
Environmental Management Act Open Burning Regulation 
Bylaw No. 2898  
Bylaw No. 2364 (consolidated; to be rescinded) 
 
Business Plan Objective: 
Goal 2.2.1   To meet public needs through the continuous improvement of key services by 

improving bylaws, policy and process within the organization. 
 
Background: 
Burning of leaves, foliage, weeds, crops or stubble for domestic or agriculatural purposes is exempt 
from the Provincial Open Burning Smoke Control Regulation and falls entirely under the 
responsibility of local governments. 
 
Analysis: 
Administration has undertaken considerable consultation with all the Fire Chiefs of the Regional 
District fire departments as well as other wildfire professionals and the Province regarding the draft  
RDOS Open Burning bylaw.   
 
At the June 4, 2020 Board meeting, the Board resolved to defer consideration of Bylaw No. 2898 
until September to allow for further consultation.  The Board liaison group consisting of the 
Electoral Area Directors who have Regional District Fire Departments, and the corresponding Fire 
Chiefs, met July 9, 2020 to discuss the bylaw.  The Keremeos Fire Chief and the Electoral Area “B” 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2020/20200917/Board Reports/D.1. BL2898 Rpt.Docx File No: 
BL2898 
Page 2 of 2 

Director voiced concern regarding enforcement of the bylaw in their area, as well as the inability to 
consult with farmers and ranchers properly due to COVID-19 restrictions.  The Tulameen Fire Chief 
and the Electoral Area “H” Director, although unable to attend the meeting, expressed similar 
concerns with respect to ability to enforce they bylaw in their area. 
 
As a result, those two fire service areas have been removed from Bylaw No. 2898.  The remaining 
members of the liaison group supported bringing the bylaw back to the Board for consideration.  
Should either the Keremeos  or Tulameen Fire Service Area wish to enter the service area at a later 
date, they may do so with Director Consent. 
 
Summary of changes: 

• Anarchist Mountain Volunteer Fire Department is now included 
• Streamlined process for requesting burn authorization, saving time for both residents and 

fire chiefs.   
• Removes the requirement for a fee for a permit.   
• Expanded list of Prohibited Burning Materials to be consistent with the Open Burning Smoke 

Control Regulation and the Waste Management Regulation. 
• All definitions have been reviewed to ensure consistency with Provincial legislation. 

 
Remaining unchanged in the regulatory bylaw is that campfires may occur year round provided 
there is not a Provincial fire ban applicable to campfires.  Additionally, open burning continues to be 
restricted to the period between October 15 and April 15. 
 
The current Open Air Burning Bylaw No. 2364 will be rescinded by Bylaw No. 2898. 
 
Alternatives: 

1. THAT Bylaw No. 2898 be read a first, second and third time and be adopted. 
2. THAT Bylaw No. 2898 not proceed. 
3. THAT Administration be directed to make the following changes to Bylaw No. 2898: 

 
Communication Strategy:  
Fact sheets and copies of the bylaw will be provided both on our website and in the office to advise 
the public about the requirements for burning.  Each Fire Department subject to the bylaw will have 
copies of provincial and local regulations as well as fact sheets and other helpful literature. 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 

“Gillian Cramm” 
____________________________________ 
G. Cramm, Legislative Services Coordinator 

Endorsed by: 
 
 

 
____________________________________ 
C. Malden, Manager of Legislative Services 

 



Page 1 of 6 
Bylaw No. 2898, 2020 

Open Burning Regulations Bylaw 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
 

BYLAW NO. 2898, 2020 
 

 
A bylaw to regulate Open Burning within the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Fire 
Protection Areas. 
 
 
WHEREAS it is deemed desirable and expedient to provide for regulations of Open Burning 
within the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen and, 
 
WHEREAS it is deemed desirable and expedient to provide regulations for the prevention and 
spread of fire and for the preservation of life within the boundaries of the fire protection areas of 
Kaleden, Naramata, Okanagan Falls, Willowbrook, and Anarchist Mountain of the Regional 
District of Okanagan-Similkameen, 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Board of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen in open 
meeting assembled enacts as follows: 
 
PART I – CITATION 
 
1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the “Regional District of Okanagan- 

Similkameen Open Burning Regulations Bylaw No. 2898, 2020” 
 
PART II – DEFINITIONS 
 
1. “Authorization” means acceptance as satisfactory to the Fire Chief. 

 
2. “Bear Banger” means a loud explosive type noisemaker that is launched from a hand 

held devise to ward off bears. 
 

3. “Burn Season” means the time period when approved open burning can take place. 
 

4. “Bylaw Enforcement Officer” means an individual appointed by the Board of Directors 
of the Regional District as a Bylaw Enforcement Officer. 

 
5. “Campfire” means an open fire that burns wood in one pile not exceeding 0.5 m in 

height and 0.5 m in width and specifically for heating or warmth, cooking or Indigenous 
ceremonial purposes. 
 

6. “Chimney” means a vertical channel or pipe that conducts smoke and combustion 
gases up from a fire. 

 
7. “Compostable Materials” means waste products from plants, trees or other vegetation 

that is naturally biodegradable including grass clippings, leaves, tree needles, garden 
waste and weeds. 

 
8. “Fire Chief” means the officer in charge of a Fire Department as appointed, after 

consultation, by the CAO and in the absence of the Fire Chief, his or her designate. 



Page 2 of 6 
Bylaw No. 2898, 2020 

Open Burning Regulations Bylaw 

 
9. “Fire Department” means the established volunteer Fire Department for a given Fire 

Protection Service Area. 
 

10. “Fireworks” means cannon crackers, fireballs, firecrackers, mines, Roman candles, 
skyrockets, squibs, torpedoes and any other explosive designated as a firework by 
regulation. 

 
11. “Nuisance” means, in this bylaw, Smoke that creates unreasonable discomfort or 

inconvenience to persons in the vicinity.  
 
12. “Open Burning” means the combustion of Permitted Burning Materials using an open 

fire.  
 

13. “Open Fire” means the combustion of material without using a stack or chimney to vent 
the emitted products of combustion to the atmosphere.  Open Fire does not include a fire 
vented through a structure that has an approved flue and spark arrestor and is 
incorporated in a building. 
 

14. “Outdoor Stove” means a device that uses liquid or gaseous fuel, or briquettes, and is 
manufactured for the purpose of heating or cooking.  It does not include a fire vented 
through a structure that has an approved flue and is incorporated in a building. 

 
15. “Permitted Burning Materials” means parts of trees or other vegetation that does not 

constitute compostable materials and includes prunings, branches, trunks and tree 
stumps. 

 
16. “Prohibited Burning Materials” includes but not limited to those materials referenced 

in the Open Burning Smoke Control Regulation and listed in the Waste Discharge 
Regulation, enacted pursuant to the Environmental Management Act as amended from 
time to time, and includes: 

 
a. animal carcasses and waste 

from animal slaughtering 
b. Asphalt or asphalt products 
c. batteries 
d. biomedical waste 
e. cardboard  
f. carpets  
g. construction waste other than 

lumber that has not been 
treated with wood preservatives 
or other chemicals and is not 
coated with paint, varnish, oil or 
other finishing material or glue 

h. demolition waste 
i. drywall 
j. domestic waste 
k. electric wire 

l. fibreglass and other fibre-reinforced 
polymers 

m. fuel and lubricant containers 
n. furniture and appliances 
o. hazardous materials 
p. manure   
q. paint and varnish 
r. paper products 
s. plastics 
t. polystyrene foam 
u. railway ties 
v. rubber 
w. tar paper 
x. tires 
y. treated or painted wood products 
z. used oil 

  



Page 3 of 6 
Bylaw No. 2898, 2020 

Open Burning Regulations Bylaw 

 
17. “Regional District” means the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen, or the area 

included therein as the context may require. 
 

18. “Smoke” means the gasses, particulate matter and all other products of combustion 
emitted into the atmosphere from open burning. 
 

19. “Torch” means a long stick of wood, bamboo, metal or plastic, with flammable material 
at one end, which is ignited and used to provide light.   

 
PART III – Burning Season  
 
1. Open Burning shall only occur as follows: 

a. Campfires may occur year round provided there is not a Provincial fire ban 
applicable to campfires. 

b. Not withstanding Part III section 1.a., the Fire Chief may impose a Campfire ban in 
a fire protection area. 

c. Permitted Burning Material piles and stubble grass burns shall be restricted 
between the period of October 15 at 0001hrs until April 15 2400hrs.   

d. Burning of infected woody material, outside of the burn season, shall only be 
burned after obtaining a burn registration number from British Columbia Wildfire 
Service and a direct clearance authorization from the Ministry of Agriculture, then 
submitting the said references with a permit application to the appropriate Fire 
Department.  Should burning of infected woody material be required during a 
Provincial Burn Prohibition, an exemption from the British Columbia Wildfire 
Service shall also be required. 

e. The Fire Chief may extend or reduce burning season should conditions allow or 
require. 

 
PART IV – Approval to Burn 
 
1. Open burning may be authorized where: 

a. A request to burn is made in the form prescribed. 
b. All requirements of this bylaw and Provincial enactments have been satisfied. 
 

2. All requests for authorization for Open Burning may be subject to a site inspection by the 
Fire Chief. 
 

3. The Fire Chief may refuse to authorize a request for Open Burning whenever, in his or 
her opinion, such burning is deemed unsafe, hazardous or may create a nuisance.  
 

4. The Fire Chief may revoke authorization at any time.  
 

5. The Fire Chief may invoke a complete fire restriction at any time should fire danger 
require it. 
 

6. This bylaw shall not be construed to hold the Regional District or the representative Fire 
Department responsible for any damages to persons or property by reason of: 
a. Inspections authorized by this bylaw; 
b. The failure to carry out an inspection; 
c. An authorization granted as herein provided. 

 



Page 4 of 6 
Bylaw No. 2898, 2020 

Open Burning Regulations Bylaw 

PART V – OPEN BURNING 
 

1. Any person who lights, fuels or uses a Campfire shall: 
a. Ensure that it is safe to burn and that it will continue to be safe to burn. 
b. Ensure that the Campfire has an adequate fuel break completely around the 

Campfire at all times. 
c. Ensure that the Campfire is monitored at all times by a responsible adult. 
d. Ensure that adequate firefighting hand tools and adequate water are immediately 

available to the responsible adult. 
e. Ensure that the Campfire is completely out and cold before leaving the fire 

unattended. 
f. Ensure that the Campfire is not ignited before 0600hrs and is extinguished before 

2300hrs each evening, unless otherwise authorized by the Fire Chief.  
g. Ensure that no burning occurs when the forecast is for windy period during or 

immediately after the burn.  
 

2. Any person who lights, fuels or burns Permitted Burning Materials or burns stubble or 
grass shall: 
a. Ensure that it is safe to burn and that it will continue to be safe to burn. 
b. Ensure that burn area has an adequate fuel break completely around it. 
c. Ensure that the burn area is monitored at all times by a responsible adult. 
d. Ensure that adequate people are immediately available with firefighting hand tools 

to assist the responsible adult monitoring the burn. 
e. Ensure that the fire is completely out and cold before leaving the fire unattended 

unless previously approved by the Fire Chief. 
f. Ensure that the fire is not ignited before 0800hrs and is extinguished before 

2300hrs each evening unless otherwise authorized by the Fire Chief.  
g. Ensure that no burning occurs when the forecast is for windy period during or 

immediately after the burn. 
 

3. The use of fireworks shall be in accordance with Provincial Regulations or Regional 
District Fireworks Bylaw. 

 
4. Torches, including decorative patio torches, are prohibited during complete fire restricted 

times. 
 
5. Bear bangers and other warning devices capable of starting fires are prohibited during 

complete fire restricted times. 
 
6. All fires are subject to local and Provincial fire restrictions and are subject to withdrawal 

of approval at any time by an authority having jurisdiction. 
 

7. A person who lights, ignites, or starts, or allows a fire to be lighted, ignited, or started, 
shall report any escape to 9-1-1 immediately and attempt to control any fire that escapes 
or threatens to escape from the intended burning area, shall stay on scene until fire is 
extinuguished unless released by the Fire Chief or person acting on behalf of the Fire 
Chief. 

 
8. The use of outdoor stoves and portable propane campfires are permitted unless 

specifically restricted by Provincial fire restrictions. 
 
9. The burning of prohibited materials is not permitted under any circumstances. 



Page 5 of 6 
Bylaw No. 2898, 2020 

Open Burning Regulations Bylaw 

 
PART VI – Smoke Management 

 
1. A person who carries on open burning shall ensure that the open burning is carried on in 

accordance with the Environmental Management Act Open Burning Regulation B.C. 
Reg. 152/2019, and any other Provincial enactment, as amended from time to time. 

 
2. The Fire Chief has authority to suspend open burning if he or she believes that the 

smoke from the burning is causing a nuisance or may cause an immediate health 
hazard. 

 
PART VII - ENFORCEMENT 
 
1. Offences listed in the Regional District’s Bylaw Notice Enforcement Bylaw as amended 

are designated for enforcement.  
 

2. In addition to the penalties which may be imposed under this bylaw, any person who 
breaches this bylaw and thereby causes the Regional District any direct or indirect 
expenses to remedy the breach, shall reimburse the Regional District for such expenses.  
The Fire Chief shall certify the expenses actually and necessarily incurred and the 
Regional District may recover the costs of undertaking the remedy either as a debt 
against the person in default or in the same manner and with the same remedies as 
property taxes. 
 

3. In relation to any particular Fire ProtectionService Area, the Fire Chief or his or her 
designate in such area may enforce the provisions of this bylaw. 
 

4. A Bylaw Enforcement Officer may enforce the provisions of this bylaw. 
 
PART VIII - LIABILITY 
 
1. This bylaw shall not create a duty of the Regional District, its officers, employees, or 

persons acting on its behalf pursuant to this bylaw concerning enforcement or failure to 
enforce any matter contained in this bylaw. 

 
2. No act, error, omission or other neglect of the Regional District in relation to any matter 

contained in the bylaw shall give rise to a cause or action or liability to any person. 
 
PART IX – REPEAL 
 
1. Bylaw No. 2364 Open Air Burning Regulations and any amendments thereto are hereby 

repealed 
 

 
  



Page 6 of 6 
Bylaw No. 2898, 2020 

Open Burning Regulations Bylaw 

READ A FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD TIME this ____ day of ____, 20___. 
 
ADOPTED this ___day of ___, 20__ 
 
 
 
______________________________  __________________________________ 
RDOS Board Chair     Corporate Officer 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Thursday, September 17, 2020 

11:30 am 
 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
 

 
A. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

RECOMMENDATION 1 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority)   
THAT the Agenda for the Okanagan-Similkameen Regional Hospital District Board meeting of September 
17, 2020 be adopted. 

 
 

B. MINUTES 
1. OSRHD Board Meeting – July 16, 2020 

RECOMMENDATION 2 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority)   
THAT the Minutes of the July 16, 2020 Okanagan-Similkameen Regional Hospital District Board 
meeting be adopted. 

 
 
C. DELEGATIONS 

1.      Carl Meadows, Executive Director, Clinical Operations, Acute and Community, South Okanagan 
2.      Joanna Harrison, Long Term Care, Executive Director, Seniors Specialized Care Transformation 

 
 
D. ADJOURNMENT 
 



 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Minutes of the Board Meeting of the Okanagan-Similkameen Regional Hospital Board (OSRHD) of Directors held 
at 1:34 p.m. on Thursday, July 16, 2020, in the Boardroom, 101 Martin Street, Penticton, British Columbia. 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  
Chair P. Veintimilla, Town of Oliver  
Vice-Chair T. Boot, District of Summerland 
Director M. Bauer, Village of Keremeos 
Director J. Bloomfield, City of Penticton 
Director G. Bush, Electoral Area “B” 
Director B. Coyne, Electoral Area “H” 
Director S. Coyne, Town of Princeton 
Director R. Gettens, Electoral Area “F” 
Director D. Holmes, District of Summerland 
Director K. Robinson, Alt. City of Penticton 

 
Director T. Schafer, Alt. Electoral Area “C” 
Director K. Kozakevich, Electoral Area “E” 
Director S. McKortoff, Town of Osoyoos  
Director S. Monteith, Electoral Area “I” 
Director M. Pendergraft, Electoral Area “A” 
Director R. Obirek, Electoral Area “D” 
Director F. Regehr, City of Penticton 
Director T. Roberts, Electoral Area “G” 
Director J. Vassilaki, City of Penticton 
 

MEMBERS ABSENT: 
Director J. Kimberley, City of Penticton 

 
Director R. Knodel, Electoral Area “C” 

STAFF PRESENT:  
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 

 
C. Malden, Manager of Legislative Services  

 
A. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

RECOMMENDATION 1 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority)   
IT WAS MOVED AND SECONDED 
THAT the Agenda for the Okanagan-Similkameen Regional Hospital District Board meeting of July 16, 
2020 be adopted. - CARRIED 

 
 

B. MINUTES 
1. OSRHD Board Meeting – May 21, 2020 
 
RECOMMENDATION 2 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority)   
IT WAS MOVED AND SECONDED 
THAT the Minutes of the May 21, 2020 Okanagan-Similkameen Regional Hospital District Board meeting 
be adopted. - CARRIED 

 
 
C. PHYSICIAN RECRUITMENT – FOR DISCUSSION 

1. Administrative Report 

RECOMMENDATION 3 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
IT WAS MOVED AND SECONDED 
That the Board request a delegation from the Interior Health Authority to discuss Regional Hospital 
District participation in physician recruitment. - CARRIED 

 
 
 

Minutes are in DRAFT form and are subject to change pending 
approval by the Regional District Board 



OSRHD Board Meeting 2 July 16, 2020 
 
D. EXTENDED CARE FACILITIES – FOR DISCUSSION 

1. Administrative Report 
 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT a representative from Interior Health be invited to present before the Board regarding extended 
care facilitates. - CARRIED 

 
 
E. ADJOURNMENT 

By consensus, the meeting adjourned at 2:11 p.m. 
 
 
 

 
APPROVED: 
 
 
 
________________________ 
P. Veintimilla 
OSRHD Board Chair  

CERTIFIED CORRECT:  
 
 
 
_________________________ 
B. Newell 
Corporate Officer 

 


	Schedule of Meetings
	Planning and Development Committee
	B. Board Report - LU-6-D Extension (REVISED VERSION - 2020-09-09)
	B.1. NRC_RDOS_response_20200908


	EnvironmentInfrastructure
	B.i. Parks Canada Update
	C. 20200917_EnviroC_LargeItemCollection

	Corporate Services
	B. 2020 Year-End Meeting Schedule

	RDOS Board
	A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	A.1.a. 20200903MINEnvironment
	A.1.b. 20200903MINPlanning
	A.1.c. 20200903MINBD
	A.2.a. CON1 E2020.007-TUP (Board Report - Taylor) initialled
	A.2.a.1. CON1 E2020.007-TUP (Permit - Taylor)
	A.2.a.2. CON1 E2020.007-TUP (Representations - Taylor)

	A.2.b. CON2 F2020.008-DVP (Board Report -Vran  Howard) initialled
	A.2.b.1. CON2 F2020.008-DVP (Permit - Vran  Howard)

	A.2.c. CON3 H2020.009-TUP (Report - UBC) initialled
	A.2.c.1. CON3 H2020.009-TUP (Permit - UBC)
	A.2.c.2. CON3 H2020.009-TUP (Representations-UBC)

	A.2.d. Report - Area 'E' APC Appointment - Debbie Selwood

	B. DEVELOPMENT SERVICES – Rural Land Use Matters
	B.1.. H2020.007-ZONE (Report - 1st2nd - McGrath Brewer) initialled
	B.1.a. H2020.007-ZONE (Amendment Bylaw No. 2498.22)
	B.1.b. H2020.007-ZONE (Representations (McGrath)

	B.2. C2020.010-ZONE (Report - 1st2nd - Loose Bay) initialled
	B.2.a. 20200917 Bylaw C2020.010-ZONE (Report - 1st2nd - Loose Bay) initialled
	B.2.b. C2020.010-ZONE Representations - Loose Bay)

	B.3. A2020.008-ALC (Report - Shuttleworth Creek) initialled

	C. FINANCE
	C.1. UB Late Payment 

	D. LEGISLATIVE SERVICES
	D.1. Open Burning BL2898 Rpt
	D.1.a. Open Burning Bylaw No. 2898


	E. CAO REPORTS
	F. OTHER BUSINESS
	G. ADJOURNMENT

	OSRHD
	B.1. 20200716MINOSRHD




